Notice of Meeting
Surrey Local Firefighters' Pension Board
Date & time
Thursday, 28 April
2022 at 10.00 am

Place
Woodhatch Place,
11 Cockshot Hill,
Reigate, Surrey,
RH2 8EF

Contact
Joss Butler
Woodhatch Place,
11 Cockshot Hill,
Reigate, Surrey,
RH2 8EF

Chief Executive
Joanna Killian

joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk

Elected Member
Councillor Nick Harrison (Employer Representative, Firefighters' Pension Scheme) (Chairman)
Vacant (Employee Representative, Firefighters’ Pension Scheme), Glyn Parry-Jones (Employee
Representative, Firefighters' Pension Scheme) and Dan Quin (Employer Representative,
Firefighters' Pension Scheme) (Vice-Chairman)

Page 1 of 3

AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

2

MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 25 NOVEMBER 2021 & 13
JANUARY 2022

(Pages 5
- 16)

The minutes of the meeting on 25 November 2021 were informally agreed
at the informal Board meeting on 13 January 2022.
This item is to formally agree the minutes of the meeting on 25 November
2021 and the minutes of the informal meeting on 13 January 2022 as a
true record of the meeting.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests from
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting.
Notes:
 In line with the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
Regulations 2012, declarations may relate to the interest of the
member, or the member’s spouse or civil partner, or a person with
whom the member is living as husband or wife, or a person with whom
the member is living as if they were civil partners and the member is
aware they have the interest.
 Members need only disclose interests not currently listed on the
Register of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests.
 Members must notify the Monitoring Officer of any interests disclosed
at the meeting so they may be added to the Register.
 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

4

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
To receive any questions or petitions.
Notes:
1. The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days
before the meeting (22 April 2022).
2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (21
April 2022)
3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no
petitions have been received.

5

SURREY LOCAL FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION BOARD ACTIONS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER

(Pages
17 - 26)

To agree the actions and recommendations tracker.

6

SCHEME MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT
The Board is asked to note the report and actions taken.

Page 2 of 3

(Pages
27 - 32)

7

XPS - SURREY FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY PENSION BOARD
REPORT

(Pages
33 - 44)

To note the XPS Surrey Fire & Rescue Authority Pension Board report.

8

ADMINISTRATION BULLETIN UPDATE

(Pages
45 - 92)

The Pensions Board has adopted a procedure to ensure that any FPS
Bulletins released by Local Government Association (LGA) are reviewed
and any necessary actions are noted and tracked through to completion.

9

RISK REGISTER

(Pages
93 - 98)

To note the Risk Register.

10

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING
The date of the next meeting is 28 July 2022.

Joanna Killian
Chief Executive
Published: 20 April 2022

Page 3 of 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 2
MINUTES of the meeting of the SURREY LOCAL FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION
BOARD held at 10.00 am on 25 November 2021 at Woodhatch Place,
Reigate.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting on
Thursday, 13 January 2022.
(* present)

Elected Members:
*
*
*
*

Nick Harrison (Chairman)
Richard Jones
Glyn Parry-Jones
Dan Quin (Vice-Chairman)

65/21 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
None received.
66/21 MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 5 AUGUST 2021 [Item 2]
The minutes were agreed as an accurate record of the meeting.
67/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
None.
68/21 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS [Item 4]
There were none.
69/21 SURREY LOCAL FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION BOARD ACTIONS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER [Item 5]
Witnesses:
Sally Wilson, Head Of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Chairman introduced the item and summarised each action
update.
2. In regards to A1/20, The Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects
explained that there was little to update on the access to modified
pension scheme as the expression of interest forms had been
circulated with a return deadline of end of 2021.
3. In regards to A19/20, the Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects
provided an update on the Internal Pensions Team within the Fire and
Rescue Service. Members noted that there was now a Senior
Pensions Advisor and a Pensions Project Support Officer within the
team. In addition, two further team members previously employed
through Orbis had been added on a temporary basis,

Page 1 of 6

Page 5

4. In regards to A5/21, The Board noted that pensions training had
previously been held by the Local Government Authority (LGA) in
Spring 2021. Officers agreed to look into booking a further training
session for the Board in Spring 2022.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
A5/21 (update) – For Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects to consider
options for pensions training for Spring 2022.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the Actions and Recommendations Tracker.
70/21 SCHEME MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT [Item 6]
Witnesses:
Sally Wilson, Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects introduced the item and
noted the following:
A. That the self-service portal was now live and that all users should
have received their activation keys. The Board also noted that the
service had received positive feedback on the portal.
B. The Service was currently considering the Memorandum of
Understanding from the Local Government Association and the
Fire Brigade Union on Immediate Detriment Remedy. The Board
noted that a decision would follow the risk assessment.
C. In regards to 10% Pensionable Allowance, letters would be
circulated to priority 1 & 2 cohorts by the end of December 2021.
The Board also noted that a further cohort, firefighters that retired
prior to 2014, would be contacted at a later stage.
2. Officers confirmed that they were looking into the statute of limitations
period for the payback of contributions.
3. The Board asked whether the service had considered options for how
the contributions would be repaid. Officers stated that they were in
discussion with payroll and finance around how payback would be
undertaken.
4. Concerning the limitation period, the Board noted that the date would
begin from when the service first received legal advice on 10 October
2021.
5. The Board noted the successful transfer of the Administration service
to XPS, and thanked all involved in the project.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the report.

Page 2 of 6

Page 6

71/21 XPS ADMINISTRATION - SURREY FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE
PENSION BOARD REPORT [Item 7]
Witnesses:
Paul Mudd, XPS
Sally Wilson, Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The representative from XPS introduced the report and made the
following comments:
A. That XPS felt the transition to XPS went well.
B. That many checks had taken place to ensure the data was
transferred from the service correctly.
C. Provided a brief overview of XPS as a business as well as a run
through of the staff within the XPS team.
D. An overview of the common data analysis
E. Provided an overview of the completed cases as noted in the
report.
2. The Board noted that performance statistics for the first two months
were encouraging, showing a performance standard of 90% or more.
3. Regarding common data, the Chairman stated it was important to trace
and confirm addresses for those people coming up to, or past
retirement age. Following further discussion, an action was agreed for
the Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects to work with XPS to use a
tracing service to confirm address for those past retirement, or within
two years of retirement.
4. The Chairman highlighted that there were some issues outstanding
prior to the transition to XPS and request an update on their status.
The representative from XPS said that there were 178 outstanding
tasks at the transition point and that 99 tasks had been cleared so far.
5. A Member of the Board highlighted that he had received positive
feedback on the self-service portal however he had received
comments that the portal was not displaying additional purchased
benefits. The representative from XPS stated that he would speak to
the system designers to understand whether additional benefits could
be included within the system.
6. A Member of the Board asked whether the pension forecast displayed
on the portal could be broken down into more information so that the
user could better understand how the forecast was calculated. The
representative stated that he would take the members comments away
for consideration.
7. The Board had a discussion around benefit statements for scheme
members not displaying the correct pensionable pay values in regards
to the 10% allowances. The representative from XPS explained that,
once the 10% allowance exercise was concluded, XPS would be able
to rerun the benefit statement program.
8. The Chairman highlighted that member of the Board could contact the
XPS pension’s email address if they had any further feedback or
support. Following on, the Chairman asked XPS to consider including
data on any helpline backlog within a future report.

Page 3 of 6

Page 7

Actions/ further information to be provided:
A7/21 - For the Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects to work with XPS to
use a tracing service to confirm addresses for those past retirement or within
two years of retirement.
A8/21 – For XPS to provide a continuing update on the clearing of outstanding
tasks inherited in the transfer to XPS.
A9/21 – For XPS to provide an update on the suggestions for improvements in
the self-service portal, and on the help line backlog.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the report.
72/21 XPS - IMMEDIATE DETRIMENT FRAMEWORK REPORT AND ANALYSIS
[Item 8]
Witnesses:
Paul Mudd, XPS
Sally Wilson, Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The representative from XPS introduced the report and provided a brief
summary on Immediate Detriment Framework as outlined in the report.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the report.
73/21 ADMIN BULLETIN UPDATE [Item 9]
Witnesses:
Sally Wilson, Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects introduced the report and
stated that the bulletins had been included for members’ information.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the report.

Page 4 of 6

Page 8

74/21 RISK REGISTER [Item 10]
Witnesses:
Sally Wilson, Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects introduced the report and
highlighted an update to risk ‘F8’ which provided detail on recruitment
within the team and the transfer to XPS, which reduced the level of risk
in this area.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the report.
75/21 ANY OTHER BUSINESS [Item 11]
There was none.
76/21 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 12]
Resolved: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information under the
relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.
77/21 SURREY FIREFIGHTER PENSION SCHEME MIGRATION - PROJECT
CLOSE REPORT [Item 13]
Witnesses:
Sally Wilson, Head of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Part 2 report was introduced by officers. The Board asked a
number of questions which were responded to by the officers present.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None.
78/21 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING [Item 14]
The Board noted the date of the next meeting as 13 January 2021.

Page 5 of 6

Page 9

Meeting ended at: 11.00 am
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 6 of 6

Page 10

MINUTES of the meeting of the SURREY LOCAL FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION
BOARD held at 12.00 pm on 13 January 2022 at Remote via Teams.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting on
Thursday, 28 April 2022.
(* present)

Elected Members:
*
*
*

Nick Harrison (Chairman)
Richard Jones
Glyn Parry-Jones
Dan Quin (Vice-Chairman)

Substitute Members:
* Benedict Mulliss

1/22

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
Apologies were received from Richard Jones. Benedict Mulliss acted as a
substitute for Richard Jones.

2/22

MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING: [Item 2]
The Board agreed that the minutes were an accurate record of the previous
meeting. The Chairman noted that the minutes would be formally agreed at
the next formal meeting.

3/22

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
None received.

4/22

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS [Item 4]
There were none.

5/22

SURREY LOCAL FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION BOARD ACTIONS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER [Item 5]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Sally Wilson, Scheme Manager
Key points raised during the discussion:

Page 1 of 6

Page 11

1. The Chairman introduced the report.
2. In regard to Action A1/20, officers highlighted that the date for the
Expression of Interest forms to be submitted had now passed.
Furthermore, officers raised a point of clarification which was that the
number of members who returned an Expression of Interest form was
103 rather than 102.
3. In regard to Action A16/20, officers confirmed that the number of
people in Priority Group 1 was 11.
4. A Member requested an update on ‘10% pensionable pay’ and how it
was likely to proceed and whether it was possible to allow scheme
members an extension of time to respond to letters sent in December
2021. Officers urged individuals with questions on the matter to contact
the pension team directly. Officers further confirmed that there was
flexibility on the timeline where appropriate. Officers also agreed to
circulate detail and timeline information on the delivery to the different
priority groups to members of the Board. The Board noted that they
would also receive further detail within the standing Update Report at
the next meeting.
5. Officers again highlighted that members of the scheme should contact
the pension team directly to raise any issues and noted that there was
flexibility within the process. The Board requested that the pension
team communicate with scheme members in the relevant priority group
to highlight this which was agreed.
6. Members agreed to close Action A19/20.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
1. The Scheme Manager agreed to circulate detail and timelines on the
delivery to the different priority groups to members of the Board.
2. The Scheme Manager agreed to contact scheme members within
relevant priority groups to highlight that the pension team can be
contacted directly to deal with any specific issues.
3. Members agreed to close Action A19/20.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the action tracker.
6/22

SCHEME MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT [Item 6]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Sally Wilson, Head Of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. Officers introduced the report and highlighted the following points:
a. that officers were waiting to see the national reaction to the
opening of the modified scheme.
b. That, on 29 November 2021, the Surrey Fire and Rescue
Service (SFRS) received an update from the Local Government
Association (LGA) to confirm that the Home Office had

Page 2 of 6

Page 12

withdrawn its guidance on the Immediate Detriment
Framework. The Service had noted the response from the Fire
Brigade Union (FBU) to the retraction of the Immediate
Detriment Framework, but was waiting for further guidance from
the Local Government Authority (LGA) and Nation Fire Chiefs
Council (NFCC).
2. Members highlighted the success of internal audit review as noted in
the report.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the report.
7/22

XPS UPDATE [Item 9]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Paul Mudd, XPS
Sally Wilson, Head Of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The representative from XPS introduced the report and made the
following points:
a. That 81% of Key Performance Indictor (KPI) work had been met in
November 2021
b. That 97% of KPI work had been met in December 2021
c. That the XPS team had been engaged with a training plan and that
they were expected to complete 97% - 100% of work going
forward.
d. Provided an update the Immediate detriment framework as noted in
the report.
e. That XPS were in the process of obtaining costs to undertake
address tracing.
f. In regard Action A8/21, it was confirmed that the outstanding
inherited tasks were almost complete.
g. Confirmed that XPS were investigating systems that could provide
a “live” view of calls waiting and available team members which
should help reduce missed calls further.
h. That the report included member self-service statistics for the first
time and provided a brief overview.
i. Provided an overview of the common data as noted in the report.
2. In regard to Member self-service, a member of the Board stated that it
would be helpful for the employee representatives on the Board to
raise awareness of the benefits of the self-service portal.
3. A member highlighted that they had contacted XPS regarding the
purchase of additional pension but had not yet received a response.
The XPS representative explained that the contact should have been

Page 3 of 6

Page 13

4.
5.

6.
7.

8.

logged in the workflow system and included within the KPI data. The
Chairman requested that XPS follow up on the contact.
The Board noted that there was no option for active members of the
scheme to receive paper copies of pension statements. Non-active
members could still receive a paper copy if needed.
The Board held a discussion on immediate detriment payments where
it was noted that XPS were currently unable to provide full information
to members of the scheme as the legislation was not in place to do so
and that they were still awaiting answers on technical questions.
The Board noted that there may be a charge when a member of the
scheme requested over three formal estimates however this would be
avoided where possible.
In regard to Action A8/21, the Chairman agreed to close the action
provided that the Board were supplied with detail on the process in
place to track the completion of outstanding inherited tasks. The XPS
representative agreed to provide evidence and detail on the tracking
activity to allow the Board to have a full understanding of the process in
place.
Furthermore, in regards to the completed cases overview, the
Chairman requested that simple data be included in future reports
which covered any backlog each month. The Chairman stated that this
data would allow the Board to have oversight of any backlog build up.
The XPS representative stated that he believed the information was
available to provide.

Actions/ further information to be provided:
1. In regard to Action A8/21, the Chairman agreed to close the action
provided that the Board were supplied with detail on the process in
place to track the completion of outstanding inherited tasks.
2. The Chairman requested that simple data be included in future update
reports which covered any completed cases backlog each month.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the report.
8/22

ADMIN BULLETIN UPDATE [Item 7]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Sally Wilson, Head Of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. Officers introduced the report.
2. The Chairman thanked officers for their work.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None.

Page 4 of 6

Page 14

Recommendations:
The Board noted the report.
9/22

RISK REGISTER [Item 8]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Sally Wilson, Head Of Data, Digital & Special Projects
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Chairman introduced the report.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None.
Recommendations:
The Board noted the report.

10/22 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING [Item 10]
The Board noted the date of the next meeting.

Page 5 of 6

Page 15

Meeting ended at: 1.00 pm
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 6 of 6

Page 16

SURREY LOCAL FIREFIGHTERS’ PENSION BOARD
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
The actions and recommendations tracker allows Board Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each Board. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded out to indicate that it
will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. The next progress check will highlight to members where actions have not been dealt with.

KEY

Page 17

Date of
meeting
and
reference

Item

17 January
2020

Administration
Update (1
September 2019 31 December 2019)

A1/20

No Progress Reported

Action In Progress

Recommendations/ Actions

To

Pensions Administration will
update the Board on the
backdating of the contracting out
certificate to 6 April 2000 detailing the effect on National
Insurance contributions and the
Modified Pension Scheme.

Scheme
Manager

Action Completed

Response

Ongoing

Item 5

As per FPS Bulletin 24 - September 2019 HMRC have
now written to all FRAs with regards to backdating their
FPS 2006 scheme contracting out certificate to 6 April
2000. This is to allow HMRC to process the refund of
National Insurance Contributions and to correct the
contracted-out status. In a few cases HMRC have
informed FRAs that they do not currently have a valid
contracting out certificate for the FPS 2006 and this will
first need to be applied for and then backdated.
The relevant form to complete has been sent to each
FRA by HMRC and is form APSS155b. The backdating
should be from 6 April 2000. HMRC goes on to confirm
that ‘a notice of intention or explanation must be given
to all employees and recognised trade unions and the
notice period of up to 3 months must have expired’. On
the assumption that some form of consultation took
place with employees following the ruling about
backdating membership HMRC will accept that as
having given the necessary notice of intention or
explanation.

Progress

Date of
meeting
and
reference

Item

Recommendations/ Actions

To

Response

It has been confirmed that DCLG (now Home Office)
consulted on changes to the scheme under the retained
firefighters pension settlement consultation, so there is
no need to issue anything further.

Page 18

In order to reduce the burden on FRAs with regards to
providing information for these refunds to be made, it
has been agreed with HMRC that only name, date of
birth, NI number and period bought back needed to be
provided. FPS Bulletin 2 and FPS Bulletin 3 provide
more information. This topic was also covered at the
special members refresher workshop [slides 52 and 53]
to clarify that there was no discretion to not provide this
information because it was needed for the HMRC GMP
reconciliation project.
July 2020: Weightmans are providing advice as part of
other work given to them on Modified and 10% Scheme
Allowances now we are ready to write back out to
members.
April 2021: Awaiting details of 2nd options exercise.
July 2021: Follow up letters have been sent to
members regarding the Modified extending the deadline
for Expression of Interest Forms (EOI) to December
2021. This follows a number of enquires and requests
for a second opportunity to express interest.
October 2021: The period for members to submit their
Expression of Interest Forms, remains open. Currently

Progress

Date of
meeting
and
reference

Item

Recommendations/ Actions

To

Response

one form has been received. From January 2022, the
calculations will be made and communicated
accordingly to those who submit their EOI.

Page 19

January 2022: The date for the Expression of Interest
forms to be submitted by has now passed. At present
there has not been an update from the Government as
to when the Modified Scheme will reopen for pension
members to join. Throughout 2021, a further 5 forms
were received. All members who returned an
Expression Of Interest form (101 people), will be
contacted in January 2022 with an update.
April 2022: Members who returned their EoI form by
31 December, were contacted in January 2022 to
confirm their wishes had been noted and the
Service is waiting for guidance from the
government as to when the scheme will reopen.
Members were informed no timeline has been
suggested and calculations will be worked through
once the legislation is in place. The second options
exercise has not yet opened and the Service were
informed on 15 March that the regulations need to
be drafted by the Home Office, and consulted on
before they become legislation. This process could
take up to 18 months. Therefore it is likely the
options exercise will only open around October
2023. Communications to be sent to members by
end of May 2022 with an update of the status of the
project.

Progress

Date of
meeting
and
reference
30 April
2020
A16/20
(Informal
meeting
due to
Covid-19)

Item

Action Tracker and
Risk Register

Recommendations/ Actions

A) Pensionable Pay particularly
concerning Duty Systems will be
added to the action tracker and
key headlines and milestones
from Weightmans regarding the
project, will be shared with the
Board once received.

Page 20

B) A risk to be added to the Risk
Register concerning Pensionable
Pay - particularly in relation to
Duty Systems.

To

Scheme
Manager

Response

30/04/20 (informal meeting) - In response, the ViceChairman explained that she had approached Jane
Marshall from Weightmans legal service who helped
scope that work project, for a report. She noted that the
Workforce Information Officer had recently chased a
reply from legal colleagues who were not in receipt of
Weightmans’ report. The Vice-Chairman agreed that
once the report was received, the Board would receive
key headlines and milestones in relation to that project.
July 2020: The Project Manager initiated work to look at
the allowances to find out what the Surrey County
Council situation looked like. He was mandated with a
task to prioritise current members and gone back to
Weightmans for further advice.
An update on pensionable allowances was given to the
November Board and a risk has been added to the risk
register. The Scheme Manager update will provide the
Board with regular updates.
April 2021: The Scheme Manager updated the Board
on Pensionable Pay and reported that a new project
manager was now in place so this and other projects
could be taken forward through a Fire Pensions
Programme Steering Group. A timeline for the
Pensionable Pay project would be established. The
Scheme Manager explained that the Steering Group
would meet monthly and this Local Firefighters’
Pensions Board would receive an update following
each meeting.

Progress

Ongoing

Date of
meeting
and
reference

Item

Recommendations/ Actions

To

Response

July 2021: Meetings in place and papers are being
shared. The previous Project Manager has left.
Recruitment is underway for a Senior Pension Advisor.
October 2021: Following a recruitment process, two
new members joined the Surrey Fire and Rescue
Service. Both members have commenced working on
10% allowance project. Further resource is being
soured to complete the calculations for the 10%
allowance project.

Page 21

January 2022: Calculations were completed in
December 2022 for Priority Group 1 (SFRS members
due to retire by end of 2023), and letters were sent to
notify them of the 10% allowance and the impact this
has had on their contributions. A total of 11 people were
in this cohort. Calculations have also commenced for
Priority Group 2 members (SFRS members who have
retired between 2014 and 2020). Letters to this cohort
are due to be sent by the end of January 2022.
April 2022: After the Priority Group 1 letters were
sent, the Service was contacted by the FBU who
confirmed they were seeking legal advice. The
Pensions Project Team made the decision to pause
communicating to other cohorts in case the FBU
feedback required an alternative method or
message to be adopted. Calculations continue to be
worked through and are now completed for Priority
Group 2 and are underway for Priority Group 3 and
4. A meeting with the FBU is planned to take place
in April 2022.

Progress

Date of
meeting
and
reference
30 April
2020

Item

Risk Register

A19/20
(Informal
meeting
due to
Covid-19

Recommendations/ Actions

To

The Pensions Support &
Scheme
Development Manager to provide Manager
an update to the Board on both
short and long term solutions to
resourcing FPS Pensions
Administration. This would include
the impact on the Modified
Pension Scheme, Pensionable
Pay and payment of scheme
member benefits as a result.

Response

Dec 2020: to be discussed at Jan 2021 meeting

Progress

Completed.

April 2021: A Pension Scheme Update is on the agenda
for the LFPB. This is a standing agenda item, alongside
the Risk Register.

Page 22

October 2021: Two new members joined the Surrey
Fire and Rescue Pensions Team. Both members are
working on the priority projects: 10% allowance, Age
Discrimination and Modified projects, as well as other
areas. XPS have taken over the role as Pension
Administrators. Further resource is being sourced for
two additional members to be part of the Surrey Fire
and Rescue Pensions Team into 2022, to complete the
calculations for the current priority projects.
January 2022: The two further members have been
working in the team for the past two months, whereby
they have been completing the calculations for the 10%
allowance project.
January 2022: The Board agreed to close this
action.

30 April
2020
A20/20
(Informal
meeting

Administration
Update (1 January
2020 - 31 March
2020)

The Pensions Support &
Development Manager will liaise
with the Head of Data, Digital &
Special Projects on the next steps
concerning the Guaranteed
Minimum Pension (GMP)
reconciliation - the new Project
Manager to assist.

Head of Data,
Digital &
Special
Projects

No major changes. At this stage Mercer, our outsource
company dealing with GMP, is still awaiting final data
cut for SFRS. We are expecting to receive the project
plan for rectification in January 2021 so we can begin
planning our side.
April 2021: Reports sent to scheme manager for review
and decisions regarding tolerance setting levels

Ongoing

Date of
meeting
and
reference

Item

Recommendations/ Actions

To

due to
Covid-19)

Response

Progress

August 2021: Officers confirmed that a meeting on
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) reconciliation
was held with XPS to agree a timeline and arrange
processes following the transfer over
to XPS.
October 2021: Mercer have provided a breakdown of
the information they have completed to date which has
been passed to XPS to obtain a quote to complete the
GMP rectification project.

Page 23

January 2022: Communications are underway with
Mercer and the payment for this service is in process.
April 2022: Mercer have confirmed further data is
required from XPS following the Pensions Increase
and a session to go through the project plan.
Mercer will send through a template of the data they
need which will allow them to continue with the
GMP rectification.
22 April
2021
A5/21

Action Tracker

The Board agreed to combine
Actions A14/20 and A15/20 as
they both related to Board
Member training.
The Board to regularly consider
future training needs.

Committee
Manager

November 2021 Update: For Head of Data, Digital &
Special Projects to consider options for pensions
training for Spring 2022.
January 2022: The LGA have been contacted, and
have confirmed they can provide training in March
2022. A date for the training to go ahead needs to be
confirmed by the Board and the SFRS Pensions Project
Team. The LGA also confirmed training on the age
discrimination remedy will be facilitated as part of the

Ongoing

Date of
meeting
and
reference

Item

Recommendations/ Actions

To

Response

Progress

LGA's remedy project implementation. Details of this
and any other future events will be advertised via the
monthly FPS bulletins. The Pensions Project Team will
monitor the website accordingly.

Page 24

25
November
2021
A7/21

25
November
2021
A8/21

XPS Administration Surrey Fire and
Rescue Service
Pension Board
Report

For the Head of Data, Digital &
Special Projects to work with XPS
to use a tracing service to confirm
addresses for those past
retirement or within two years of
retirement.

Head of Data,
Digital &
Special
Projects

XPS Administration Surrey Fire and
Rescue Service
Pension Board
Report

For XPS to provide a continuing
update on the clearing of
outstanding tasks inherited in the
transfer to XPS.

Head of Data,
Digital &
Special
Projects

April 2022: Training took place with the LGA which
was attended by the Pensions Team, Scheme
Manager and Local Pension Board members on 29
March 2022.
January 2022: XPS confirmed that they were in the
process of obtaining costs to undertake address
tracing.

Ongoing

April 2022: XPS have provided the cost for this
Service. This has been sent to the Scheme Manager
to review and approve.
January 2022: The Pensions Project Team held a
Service meeting with XPS on 29 November 2021. XPS
confirmed the majority of cases have now been
completed. There were 56 cases that have gone back
to SFRS due to ongoing transfer queries. Some of
these tasks have been outstanding for some time now
but it is very positive that most have been completed
now.
January 2022: the Chairman agreed to close the action
provided that the Board were supplied with detail on the
process in place to track the completion of outstanding
inherited tasks.

Closed

Date of
meeting
and
reference
25
November
2021
A9/21

Item

Recommendations/ Actions

To

Response

XPS Administration Surrey Fire and
Rescue Service
Pension Board
Report

For XPS to provide an update on
the suggestions for improvements
in the self-service portal, and on
the help line backlog.

Head of Data,
Digital &
Special
Projects

January 2022: XPS stated that they were investigating
systems that can provide a “live” view of calls waiting
and available team members which should help reduce
missed calls further. This development will be rolled out
during 2022.

Progress

Ongoing

April 2022: Monthly service meetings take place
between XPS and SFRS to monitor the progress of
tasks and provide areas of improvement where
required.

Page 25

13 January
2022
A1/22

Surrey Local
Firefighters’ Pension
Board Actions and
Recommendations
Tracker

For the Scheme Manager to
circulate detail and timeline
information related to each priority
group to members of the Board.

Head of Data,
Digital &
Special
Projects

April 2022: A timeline of when members are due to
Ongoing
be contacted was sent to the Fire Officer
Association employee representative on 21 January
2022. After this date the Service heard from the FBU
and the communications to members was placed
on hold. A follow up email was sent to the employee
representative on 22 February to notify him the
timeline will change due to the pause in
communications. A revised copy will be sent after
the meeting with the FBU has taken place.

13 January
2022
A2/22

Surrey Local
Firefighters' Pension
Board Actions and
Recommendations
Tracker

For the Scheme Manager to
contact scheme members within
relevant priority groups to
highlight that the pension team
should be contacted directly to
deal with any specific issues.

Head of Data,
Digital &
Special
Projects

April 2022: The communications sent to all
members in Priority Group 1 were advised of the
pensions team email address and to contact them if
they have any queries. The email address was also
included on all communications to member of the
modified and McCloud project.

Ongoing

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 6

Surrey Local Firefighters’ Pension Board
28 April 2022
Scheme Management Update Report
Recommendations:
The Board is asked to note the report and actions taken.

1.0 Introduction:
1.1 The Board has requested an update on Scheme management activities.
2.0 Scheme Management Activities
2.1 McCloud - Age Discrimination – Immediate Detriment Remedy
2.2 The Home Office withdrew its informal guidance on immediate detriment in November
2021. This led to Fire and Rescue Authorities reconsidering their position regarding the Fire
Brigade Union (FBU) and Local Government Association (LGA) Immediate Detriment
Framework (IDF) Memorandum of Understanding (MoU). The information provided to date
by the LGA, indicates there are many complex issues involved with the McCloud case and
until the legislation is implemented in October 2023, the financial risks to both the member
and the Fire and Rescue Authority (FRA) remains high. So far, the message to FRA’s
continues to state IDF should only be adopted if deemed appropriate for each individual
FRA. The Service anticipated a legal update would be provided by Bevan Brittan via the
LGA at the start of 2022 with respect to the IDF, however this has not yet been issued.
2.3 From information gathered at the LGA coffee mornings, there are some FRA’s in the
country who are processing Immediate Detriment claims. However, this seems to be mainly
due to applications being in progress before the LGA published the MoU or the number of
members affected being very low so the level of risk is low.
2.4 Monthly meetings have commenced with XPS on the McCloud project as a platform to
answer any questions and gain guidance on how to proceed. These have proved to be very
useful.
2.5 The Service is waiting for the template from XPS so the data collection exercise can
commence. On 23 March 2022, XPS confirmed there would be a delay in sending the
template to the Service due to an error whereby data is not included on the template even

Page 27

though it is held on the system. This is an error affecting all clients XPS is working with.
Once the template is received, the exercise will take approximately six months to complete
and will require resource and input from a number of teams within the Service and Surrey
County Council (SCC). This exercise will be of great benefit, not only for the project but as
part of a data cleansing exercise too.
2.6 A communication was received on 4 April from the LGA which shared a letter signed by
both the LGA (on behalf of FRA’s) and the Fire Brigades Union sent to the Home Office on
the processing of the age discrimination remedy. The letter highlighted the challenges FRA’s
currently face which is preventing benefits due to members to be paid and ways in which
these can be progressed by the Home Office amending legislation or offering greater
flexibility. The Service welcomed this communication from the LGA and FBU, as we want to
progress in this area for both scheme administration and for members. However as no
further guidance was provided to FRA’s on how to continue on this project, the Service’s
stance remains the same and implementing immediate detriment remains paused.
2.7 Age Discrimination – Move to FPS 2015
2.8 As part of the remedy for the age discrimination which occurred due to the introduction of
the FPS 2015 pension, all active firefighters, regardless of age and legacy pension scheme
membership, moved to the FPS 2015 pension scheme on 1 April 2022.
2.9 A communication was sent to all active members to confirm their pension contributions
would be made to the FPS 2015 scheme from 1 April. This letter was sent the week
commencing 11 March 2022. The letter informed members who were part of the FPS 1992
or FPS 2006 pension schemes that their contributions may also change from 1 April 2022
and how this may affect them at retirement. Included in the letter was a myth busting
factsheet in relation to the McCloud / Sargeant remedy.
2.10 The payroll team were also notified that members of the FPS 1992 and FPS 2006
scheme would now be members of the FPS 2015 pension scheme. As a result their
contributions may need to be adjusted to meet the rules of the 2015 scheme. The Payroll
team have confirmed this has been implemented.
2.11 10% Pensionable Allowance
2.12 After the letters to Priority Group One members were sent in December 2022, a
communication was received from the regional FBU representative to inform the Service that
legal advice was being sought regarding the content of the letter. The Service had sought its
own legal advice prior to the letters being sent, however the decision was made to pause
sending communications to members in the next cohorts. This was on the basis that should
the feedback from the FBU require a different approach this could be actioned in a more
efficient manner and be less confusing for members. A meeting with the FBU took place on
13 April 2022. Now the feedback has been received, a further meeting is required to work
through the concerns raised. This relate to members paying contributions to the Service if
they do not receive any additional pension benefit and the date the Statute of Limitation
should commence from. The Pensions Project Team anticipate there will still be some time
until the matter is resolved, so communicating to members of Priority Group Two onwards
remains paused. This delay will impact not only when priority groups are contacted but also
when the project will finish.

Page 28

2.13 Calculations have been completed for the Priority Group Two and are underway for
Priority Groups Three and Four. Calculations will continue to be worked through by the
project team.
2.14 Modified Scheme – On-Call Access
2.15 In January 2022 an update was sent to all members who submitted their Expression of
Interest form. The communication informed members their wishes had been noted and
further information would be provided to them once an update from the Home Office was
provided. The communication also noted calculations will be provided once further guidance
has been provided to FRA’s.
2.16 It is important to note that previous communications to members stated once the
Expression of Interest deadline passed, calculations would be undertaken and provided to
members. The reason for the change in stance has been due to the delay in information
from the Home Office regarding how to proceed, the complexity of the project as there are
further factors to consider, and a cautious approach being adopted by the Service. If the
Service were to provide calculations, we may find at a later date the method or interest to
factor in calculations would be incorrect and need to be reworked. So far there has been one
member who has noted the change in stance and has contacted the Service via the pension
reform inbox on this matter.
2.17 Communications were received from the LGA on 15 March 2022 regarding the modified
scheme. It confirmed “regulations to implement the second options exercise in England will
be drafted by the Home Office and consulted on before they are laid before Parliament. The
Home Office has a maximum period of 18 months to draft, consult, and introduce the
necessary secondary legislation”. This update along with the LGA guidance at the bi-weekly
coffee mornings, has confirmed the second exercise will open around September 2023 and
will be known as the ‘2023 exercise’.
2.18 Based on the guidance above from the LGA, the Pensions Project Team has sent a
communication to SFRS News with the update on the modified project. This will be
published on 15 April 2022. The team also sent an update letter the week commencing 4
April, to members who confirmed they would like more information on the modified project.
2.19 It is important for the Board to note the period when the 2023 exercise is due to open,
falls simultaneously with the launch of the legislation for the McCloud / Age Discrimination
Remedy secondary legislation. This will mean additional resourcing will be required
throughout 2023 and into 2024. This has been highlighted as action F8 on the risk register
and we are considering the control measures to implement.
2.20 Training
2.21 Training for all Board members and the Pensions Project Team took place on 29 March
2022. The training provided by the LGA was a technical update covering hot topics of age
discrimination, immediate detriment, Mathews/modified, pension dashboards, abatement
and the cost control mechanism. This proved to be a very useful and insightful afternoon for
all attendees.
2.22 – From the training it highlighted a number of action points for the Service to complete.
These were:
Topic

Tasks

Status

Page 29

McCloud / Age
discrimination

1. Ensure all remaining members are transferred into1.
FPS 2015 from 1 April 2022 on payroll
2. Send cohort-specific 1 April 2022 letter to all
2.
members*
3. Distribute ‘Your questions answered’ factsheet 3.
4. Monitor optant outs –new factsheet available!
4.
5. Communicate opt in message.
5.
6. Update websites and other resources
6.
7. Consider possible upcoming IQMP referrals
7.
8. Send follow up letter to former protected members8.
9. Collection and cleansing of remedy data
9.

1. Completed

1. Continue to consider adoption of the framework
2. Maintain open comms with members and local
rep bodies
3. Continue data collection work for cases
4. Calculate potential liabilities to assess financial risk
5. Consider alternative to not adopting Framework

1. Underway
2. Underway

Matthews /
modified

1. Identify those in scope
2. Find out what steps were taken for 2014 exercise
3. Provide aggregation numbers to LGA by 31 May
2022
4. Respond to consultation (in due course)

1.
2.
3.
4.

Pensions
dashboard

1. Consider how to connect
2. Consider what resources will be needed
3. Begin / continue to cleanse data

1. To action
2. To action
3. Underway

Abatement

1. Review existing policies
2. Revisit previous cases if required
3. Monitor cases for consistency in decision making
and process followed

1. Underway
2. To action
3. To action

Immediate
detriment

2. Completed
3. Completed
4. Underway
5. Completed
6. To action
7. Underway
8. To action
9. To action

3. To action
4. Completed
5. Completed
Underway
Underway
Underway
To action

2.23 The Pension Regulator – “six processes” factsheet
2.24 The Pensions Project Team have worked through the six processes and are waiting for
clarification on one aspect before this document is shared with the Board. The item to be
finalised are the process for resolving contribution payment issues. From the initial review it
appears the Service is in a positive position with respect to the processes recommended for
FRA’s to follow by the LGA.
2.25 Pension Policy
2.26 The Pension Project Team have been working through an overarching policy for the
SFRS pensions. This has been shared with the Board members for review.
2.27 The Pensions Project Team have also highlighted a number of additional policies which
need to be created to ensure best practice. These have been set as a team objective to be
completed by end of June 2022.

Page 30

2.28 Risk Management
The Local Firefighters Pension Scheme (LFPS) Risk Register has been reviewed
and is a standing agenda item on the LFPB.
2.29 Summary
The Board is asked to note the update provided.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report contacts: Sally Wilson and Carrie Pearce
Contact details: E: sally.wilson@surreycc.gov.uk
E: carrie.pearce@surreycc.gov.uk
Sources/background papers: N/A
Annexes: N/A

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 7

Surrey Fire & Rescue Authority
Pension Board Report
2021-2022 – Q4

Page 33

Contents
01 Overview
02 Member Self Service
03 Common Data
04 Membership
05 Completed Cases Overview
06 Completed Cases by Month
07 Complaints

Page 34

01 Overview
Regulations and Guidance

January 2022


Firefighters Pension Scheme Bulletin 53 released

February 2022


LGA issued a McCloud ‘fact checker’. Following concerns that there were a lot of myths circulating about
remedy. LGA commissioned Barnett Waddingham to work in collaboration with the Scheme Advisory Board,
the Board secretariat, and the Scheme Management & Administration committee with the aim to publish a
Remedy ‘fact checker’. This was emailed to FRAs on 09/02/2022 and FRAs were asked to distribute document
as widely as possible.



Firefighters Pension Scheme Bulletin 54 released

March 2022


LGA issued confirmation that following a review of the retained firefighters ‘Special Options’ exercise an
agreement had been reached which would extend the rights of retained firefighters to access the firefighter
Pension Scheme. LGA have confirmed that the Home Office are currently drafting regulations to allow the
extension of the options exercise and will issue further details as it becomes available. Please note that the
time period to draft / consult / and lay regulations is 18 months.



Firefighters Pension Scheme Bulletin 55 released

Additional Work / Previous Minutes
Use of tracing service to confirm addresses for those members approaching, or beyond, Normal Retirement
Age
XPS are working with a 3rd party and have provided Surrey FRA a quote to complete this work. This includes a tiered
offering which will provide for Mortality screening as well as address screening.
Update on clearing of outstanding inherited tasks following transfer to XPS
Ongoing – you will see from the KPI metrics that some of these outstanding items that have been completed have
fallen outside of the KPI. Unfortunately, this does have the effect of reducing the perceived effectiveness of the service.
Suggestions to improve the self-service portal and helpline backlog
Helpline
Calls, abandonment rates, call waiting times are monitored and these have been very positive generally. Discussions
however do continue regarding a move of any incoming calls, and potentially enquiries, to an XPS Contact Centre. This
operation is already live within our Middlesbrough office, serving a number of non-public-sector clients.
Self Service Portal
A video has been sent to Surrey FRA to be distributed to scheme members and hopefully, this will get people to the
correct areas of the website and help them sign up. We have also added to our reporting tools for Member Self Service
to see if we can identify trends in respect of failing sign ups, non-signed up cohorts.

XPS Administration

Page 35

02 Member Self Service

XPS Administration

Page 36

03 Common Data

The Common Data reports are run on a quarterly basis, just after the quarter end.
Data quality is good and where we have failures here, it is likely that at least for some of them, they
cannot be rectified.
An example of this is the NI Number – we currently pay pensions to people of all ages. For Surrey
Fire and Rescue, your oldest dependent is 100 and the youngest 8.
For children in receipt of a dependents pension, they will not receive a NI Number of their own until
they reach age 16. We therefore have to create a temporary NI Number which carries a prefix of TN,
this is not a recognised NI Number, and will therefore fail the NI Number quality test. These will
naturally be resolved in the passing of time.
The tests for Title are quite specific. Missing titles will fail, as will some of the lesser-known titles.
Occasionally, if a member set has been imported and there are additional spaces within the Title
field, these can also cause fails.
Address / Post Code Fails can occur either where the data is missing, or, where the address does not
meet the standards as dictated by the UK postal service. Typically, we see that the deferred cohort
are those with the most missing fails and overseas address can fail as they do not meet UK standards
for format / layout.

XPS Administration

Page 37

04 Membership
Quarter 4 2021 - 2022
Scheme
Old - FPS
New - NFPS
CARE - 2015
Total
Quarter 3 2021 - 2022
Scheme
Old - FPS
New - NFPS
CARE - 2015
Total
Quarter 2 2021 - 2022
Scheme
Old - FPS
New - NFPS
CARE - 2015
Total

❶

Actives

❹

Deferred

Pensioner

❺

❻

Widow

19 ▼

72 -

770 ▲

144 ▲

8 ▼

8 ▼
540 ▼
567 ▼

93 ▲
60 ▲
225 ▲

18 ▲
4 792 ▲

0 3 147 ▲

0 1 9 ▼

❹

Pensioner
❺
768 ▲
17 ▲
4 ▲
789 ▲

Widow

❺
Pensioner
763 ▲
16 ▲
3 ▲
782 ▲

Widow

❶

Actives
22
9
549
580

26
12
538
576

72
92
55
219

▼
▲
▲

❶

Actives

Deferred

▼

▲
▲
▲
▲

▼
▼
▼
▼

❹

Deferred
80
138
122
340

▲
▲
▲
▲

❻
143
0
3
146

145
0
2
147

11
0
1
12

▲
▼

❻
▲
▲

Page 38

-

�

Dependant

▲

schemes. This will be provided on a quarterly basis at each meeting on a rolling year basis.

�

Dependant

▼

This table is designed to be a very quick, at a glance, display of the membership movements within the

XPS Administration

�

Dependant

11
0
1
12

▲
▲
▲

05 Completed Cases Overview

This table is designed to be a very quick, at a glance, display of the total cases completed within the
year.
Further details on specific workflows are shown below.

XPS Administration

Page 39

06 Completed Cases by Month
Here we break down the performance of XPS month by month. Each month is split out into its own
table with the fifteen main KPI’s listed with performance set out against each of them.

January 2022

Total cases outside of the standard timeframe were three. These were:





XPS Administration

a deferred case where the member left in 2018 and the record had never been closed down.
As it was an historic case, we did finalise but really the record should have been deferred
when received.
a deferred case, the member retired and their pension due from the 1992 scheme was
processed on time, but the deferring of their 2015 record did take longer unfortunately.
a transfer in case but again historic. It has been ongoing since we took over with the
transferring company having issues with the bank details to make payment. This is now
resolved, and the transfer finalised, however the member actually left the service in August
2021, but no paperwork has yet been received to confirm this. We have requested this again
to be able to process his inter-brigade transfer out.

Page 40

February 2022

Total cases outside of the standard timeframe were seven. These were:











XPS Administration

an estimate case but also a complaint case the member raised regarding the transfers of
previous service from before XPS took over. Two previous periods of service were not
recorded on our records and member stated that no ABS had been issued. We had to
update the record and issue and estimate in place of an ABS, which did unfortunately take
time.
an ill health estimate, and we took longer to respond to advise this request needed to come
from Surrey.
A request for details of all service held and how pension benefits would be calculated due
to the member querying the accuracy of the figures on their 2019 ABS. They also made a
SAR. There were delays in getting details of the team at Surrey who deal with SAR requests.
Member contacted us to advise they had been promoted in September 2021. We held no
details of this so had to contact Surrey for confirmation. The was a delay in updating the
member’s record once this had been received.
Member requested confirmation of their pension amount. The letter to confirm this did take
longer than our normal timeframe.
Member advised that their marital status was incorrect. We updated their record, but this
did take several days longer than usual.
general task that was closed in error as it was actually an inter-brigade transfer.

Page 41

March 2022

Total cases outside of the timeframe were nineteen. These were:


















XPS Administration

This was a deferred case, the member retired and their pension due on the 1992 scheme
was processed on time, but the deferring of their 2015 record did take longer unfortunately.
Estimate request as did not agree figures MSS was producing compared to those quoted by
Surrey. The pay recorded on our record was incorrect and needed updating. The estimate
took longer to produce than our normal timeframes.
Estimate request. No CARE pay held, and previous pay figures did not match year end
posting held. The estimate took longer to produce than our normal timeframes.
Estimate request x 2 that did unfortunately take longer to produce
Estimate request that did unfortunately take longer to produce
Estimate request that did unfortunately take longer to produce timeframes.
Estimate request x 2 that did unfortunately take longer to produce
Remedy query could not provide information.
ID query.
Query from outstanding work list transferred to us. This related to ex-spouse’s record so
case closed.
General x 2 as member queried pay held on record. This was updated once received
Needed correct address to forward cheque to Surrey in relation to a death case.
Incorrect task as dealt with under retirement process and no delays.
General query over retirement age.
General task closed in error when it had been dealt with under a transfer task.
General task where member needed explanation of how their historic transfer credit was
calculated.

Page 42

07 Complaints
Full Name

Description

None this period

XPS Administration

Page 43

Date received

Date
completed

Comment

Paul Mudd
Governance Manager
01642 030682

XPS Pensions Group, XPS Pensions, XPS Group, XPS Administration, XPS Investment and XPS Transactions are the
trading names of Xafinity Consulting Ltd, Punter Southall Ltd and Punter Southall Investment Consulting Ltd.
XPS Administration is the trading name of PS Administration Ltd.
Registration
Xafinity Consulting Ltd, Registered No. 2459442. Registered office: Phoenix House, 1 Station Hill, Reading RG1
1NB. Punter Southall Investment Consulting Ltd Registered No. 6242672,
Punter Southall Ltd Registered No. 03842603, PS Administration Ltd Registered No. 9428346.
All registered at: 11 Strand, London WC2N 5HR. All companies registered in England and Wales.
Authorisation
Punter Southall Investment Consulting Ltd (FCA Register number 528774) and
Xafinity Consulting Ltd (FCA Register number 194270) are both authorised and
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) for investment business.

Page 44

Item 8

Surrey Local Firefighters’ Pension Board
28 April 2022
FIRE BULLETINS
The Pensions Board has adopted a procedure to ensure that any FPS Bulletins released by
LGA are reviewed and any necessary actions are noted and tracked through to completion.
Bulletins 53, 54 and 55 (Annex 2) have been published since the last Board meeting.
1.1 Bulletin 53 highlighted the LGA is aware many FRA’s are still considering whether to
adopt the Immediate Detriment Framework. The LGA will shortly be contacting each
FRA to ascertain their personal stance on the framework to understand the current
landscape. This feedback will assist the LGA when speaking to other parties to identify
solutions or support that is needed.
1.2 The bulletin noted the LGA submitted its response to the Home Office consultation on
the prospective changes to remove the transitional protections from the 2015 scheme.
The changes are due to come into force on 1 April 2022.
1.3 Bulletin 53 reminded readers that due to the 1 April 2022 deadline for prospective
changes to be implemented with respect to the age discrimination case, many FRA’s
should be working through the guidance in bulletin 41 and collating the data to populate
the FPS remedy data collection template. SFRS confirmed to XPS in February 2022,
that the data collection exercise can commence and is waiting for the template to be sent
over to start this task.
The LGA added they are planning on setting up working groups and are happy to deliver
training and/or knowledge refreshers. This is something which the Service will look onto
obtaining as this would be beneficial for our knowledge to answer any member queries.
1.4 The bulletin highlighted the Scheme Advisory Board remedy self-assessment survey
was distributed to each FRA in December 2021. A summary of this has been created by
the Pension Project Team detailing the Service’s responses against other FRA’s. This
was distributed to all Local Firefighters Pension Board members in February 2022. The
bulletin went on to add that the LGA found the self-assessment surveys so useful to
understand FRA’s positions on the McCloud / Sargeant and Matthews remedies, that
they are planning to run a survey targeted to the administrations. All submitted surveys
will be sent to the LGA who will pass these onto the Scheme Advisory Board for
analysis.

Page 45

1.5 The bulletin confirmed the SAB submitted its response to the consultation on the
prospective changes to the pension scheme regulations which are due to come into force on
1 April 2022. This response will be interesting for the Pension Project Team to see the SAB’s
views.
1.6 Bulletin 53 confirmed the SAB budget for 2021/2022 has been approved by the minister
and the invoicing process has started. The invoicing process is based on the shared
agreement FRA’s made in 2014 to fund a technical adviser post to support FRAs with their
understanding and management of the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes. The employers’
voluntary subscription is included in the final levy. The total levy for the 2021-22 year will be
£9.16 per firefighter, which is calculated at £6.88 for the SAB and £2.28 for employers. The
first stage of the process is for FRAs to provide a valid purchase order number, stating the
number of employees eligible to join one of the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes as of 1 April
2021, using the form provided with the letter sent to FRA’s on 11 January 2022.
1.7 The bulletin highlighted FRA’s are able to respond to the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP) consultation on the Pensions Dashboard Regulations. The consultation is
voluntary and is open until 13 March 2022. The SAB provided links to their responses to the
consultations in 2019 and 2021 on this topic as a reference point for FRA’s. DWP is hosting
a series of webinars connected to the consultation to help stakeholders form their
responses. FRAs can register for the webinars on the PDP webpage publicising the
consultation. The Pensions Project team has had conversations on this topic in their steering
group meetings and service meeting with XPS Administration.
1.8 Readers were informed of a dismissed judicial review which challenged the McCloud
ruling brought by the Police Superintendents’ Association (PSA). The PSA challenged the
legality of the consultation remedying the discrimination identified in the McCloud judgment
in the unfunded public service schemes and the decision to close the legacy schemes on 1
April 2022.
The Court upheld some aspects of the PSA’s claims and found that the Government had not
given clear conscientious consideration to the consultation responses before deciding to
close the legacy schemes on 1 April 2022 and that parts of the public sector equality duty
was breached. The Court decided against granting relief as it found it highly likely that the
Government would have made the same decisions if the breaches had not occurred. This
may explain the reason for the delay in information being sent to FRA’s in relation to the
McCloud / Sargeant case.
1.9 Bulletin 53 reminded readers of the HMRC newsletter/bulletin which was released on 17
January 2022. The newsletter contained articles on:
 Relief at source ― notification of residency status report for 2022 to 2023
 Normal minimum pension age (NMPA)
 Extension to some of the temporary changes to relief at source processes
 Maintaining qualifying recognised overseas pension schemes (QROPS) status
 Pension flexibility statistics
 Managing Pension Schemes service
 Scheme Pays reporting
The newsletter provides the Pensions Project Team the chance to gain some further
information on the above points.
1.10 Finally the bulletin reminded FRA’s that from Mid-March 2022, they will no longer be
able to submit their Accounting For Tax returns via the Pension Schemes Online Service.
Instead for returns reporting from 1 January 2022, FRA’s need to migrate their pension

Page 46

scheme in time to the Managing Pension Schemes service, and compile and submit their
AFT by the 15 May 2022 deadline.
2.1 Bulletin 54 commenced by confirming the position on the Immediate Detriment
Framework (IDF), remains the same. The LGA is continuing to press the government for
further advice and is aware similar issues are arising across other public service schemes.
The LGA also approached FRA’s to provide their position on the IDF and barriers they are
encountering via a short survey. The Pensions Project Team completed this on 24 February
2022 ahead of the 28 February deadline 2022.
2.2 The Pensions Project Team at SFRS were reminded of the recent Pension Ombudsman
ruling (P25374), that all FRA’s should ensure they have an abatement policy in in place. This
was due to a FRA identifying an re-employed pensioner should have been abated on
employment and was not. The FRA sought to recover the over payment of pension, however
the member challenged this as they believed the FRA had a duty of care to alert them at the
outset that their pension would be abated. Whilst the Ombudsman determined the FRA
didn’t have an additional duty of care other than to provide the correct information, the
complaint was partially upheld due to the extent the FRA did not follow a reasonable process
when exercising their discretion under rule K4 of FPS 1992. The LGA confirmed the legal
advice from the SAB stated FRA’s should consider changing their policy on blanket
abatement to allow discussion of individual circumstances, so proper consideration is taken
when agreeing whether abatement should apply. It is also recommended that FRAs formally
document each decision to evidence that they have made an informed decision. An
abatement policy has been highlighted by the team as being required and is in place to be
written by end of June 2022.
2.3 The Bulletin detailed the actions FRA’s must take imminently with relation to all members
transitioning to the FPS 2015 pension scheme. This included:
 All payslips stating the correct scheme the employee is contributing
 Informing all members they will now be part of the FPS 2015
 Communicating to members that their contribution rates may change due to the
transition to the FPS 2015 scheme.
All members were contacted the week commencing 14 March 2022 in relation to the second
point. As a side note, the contribution bands themselves have not changed, however the
move from a legacy scheme to the FPS 2015 scheme may mean member contribution rate
to their pension will change.
2.4 In addition to communicating to members their pension scheme will be transferred to the
FPS 2015 scheme, FRA’s were encouraged in Bulletin 54 to inform members who are
identified to lose their lifetime allowance protection due to the transition on 1 April. The
Pensions Project Team received confirmation from XPS Administration that no members
would lose their protection.
2.5 Bulletin 54 reminded all FRA’s to submit their responses to the administrator selfassessment survey. The survey was emailed directly to administrators on 24 February 2022.
The survey aimed to ascertain FRA’s preparations made in relation to the implementation of
the age discrimination remedy as well as their readiness for Matthews and Pension
Dashboards.
2.6 The Bulletin informed readers of an action from the SAB meeting on 30 September 2021,
whereby a suite of illustrative members scenarios in relation to McCloud / Sargeant remedy
needs to be provided. As a result Barnet Waddingham was appointed to deliver this work.
The first part of the work was the creation of a myth busting fact sheet. This was shared with
FRA’s in February. The Pensions Project Team shared this with its members on 18 February

Page 47

2022 via the SFRS Newsletter and again as part of the communications to active members
on the transition to the FPS 2015 scheme, in the week of 14 March 2022.
2.7 The LGA expressed in Bulletin 54 further concerns it holds on the proposed staging
deadline of April 2024 for public service pension schemes including FPS, to be available on
the Pensions Dashboard. The LGA will be responding on behalf of the LGA and SAB that
the deadline is a concern due to the pressures FRA’s face to have the data available, as well
as the McCloud remedy regulations only coming into force 6 months before (October 2023).
The Matthews second options exercise is also expected to be underway throughout Q3
2023/2024 too. The Pensions Project Teams recognises many members may be
disappointed their pensions may not be on the dashboard until a later date if the
recommendations expressed by the LGA are taken on board. However it will mean that
when the pensions are available, they will reflect McCloud and accurately display their
pension, so a greater benefit and confidence in the dashboard will be gained.
2.8 Bulletin 54 confirmed on 9 February 2022, the DWP launched a call for evidence to
gather views for the review on pension state age. The review takes place every six years
and the DWP asks a variety of parties including members of the public, for their stance on
the following areas:
 Intergenerational fairness
 Notice periods for State Pension age changes
 Changes in working patterns
 Predicted future changes to the workplace
 Sustainability and affordability
 Options for taking into account differences in circumstances when setting State
Pension age
 What metrics should be considered to determine State Pension age.
These will all help the government on what to consider when setting the state pension age in
the future.
2.9 The bulletin highlighted the threshold for employees to be automatically enrolled into a
workplace pension scheme has remained at £10,000 for 2022/23.
3.1 Bulletin 55 commenced to confirm the Home Office published its consultation response
on prospective remedy and a frequently ask questions document. The consultation confirms
the changes to the pension scheme regulations to remove the transitional protections from
legacy schemes to FPS 2015, and provide provisions for an ill health (IH) underpin. A further
consultation will take place later in the year to work through the retrospective remedy
requirements and finalise the deferred choice underpin (DCU). The ill health underpin ensure
that members who are in the process of retiring due to IH are not left in a less favourable
position should the process have concluded prior to 1 April. The Service can confirm those
who are in the process of going through the IH process have been recorded so their
pensions are not negatively impacted.
3.2 The bulletin highlighted the MoU was drafted and signed by the required parties and
shared to FRA’s in March with respect to the Matthews case and the second options
exercise. It confirmed the time period the Home Office has until the second options exercise
needs to open (September 2023), and the deadline when FRA’s need to complete the tasks
for all affected members (18 months from the date the legislation comes into force). The next
steps for FRA’s to complete prior to the second options exercise were reconfirmed in the
bulletin and the Service can confirm these are in progress.

Page 48

3.3 Bulletin 55 informed readers of a further letter to send to protected members following on
from the transition to FPS 2015 from 1 April 2022. A template was provided by the LGA
which the Service will send out accordingly by the end of April 2022.
3.4 Readers were notified of contingent decisions specific to optant outs. Due to the
introduction of FPS 2015 and the changes made to it, some firefighters chose to opt out of
the pension scheme rather than transition into FPS 2015. The government has recognised in
its Public Service Pensions consultation response that some members may not have opted
out if they knew they could continue their legacy scheme during the remedy period. A final
policy on this has not yet been finalised, however FRA’s are urged to note this matter for
when actions need to be taken.
3.5 The bulletin provided a comprehensive breakdown on contingent decisions:
“contingent decisions only cover the remedy period (1 April 2015 to 31 March 2022). This
means that should a member remain opted out beyond 1 April 2022 they may, under
retrospective legislation, be given the option to buy back their opted-out service which
occurred during the remedy period. However, it is unlikely that regulations will permit them to
buy back service after 31 March 2022. This could therefore mean that their pension would
remain deferred with a payment age of 60 for FPS 1992 and 65 for FPS 2006 (special
members have a deferred payment age of 60), regardless of whether they buy back the
opted-out service during the remedy period.
We understand that some members have indicated that they want to buy back their optedout service for the remedy period, as they want to retire as an active member. If this is the
case, members should speak with their pension/payroll department and arrange to be opted
back into the FPS on or before 1 April 2022.”
3.6 Bulletin 55 highlighted the final outcome of the cost control element of the 2016 valuation
for the FPS in England was published and confirmed a breach to the cost cap ceiling of
14.6%. The report concludes the 2016 valuation is not used to set the employer contribution
rates and any changes from the 2020 valuations will take effect in 2024. The bulletin
provided a background on this topic whereby in 2021 the government announced proposed
changes to the Cost Control Mechanism (CCM) to be implemented in time for the 2020
valuations. These changes will not affect 2016 valuations as the government found it
inappropriate to reduce member benefits if the CCM was not working as intended. If any
breaches are reported for the 2016 valuations, the government has confirmed these will be
waived.
3.7 The bulletin reminded FRA’s to work towards submitting audited 2020/21 and unaudited
2021/22 pensions income/expenditure data as part of this year’s top up grant claim via the
new DELTA online system. The Service can confirm it is aware of this and the deadlines.
The bulletin also noted the comparison checks FRA’s should make when submitting to
DELTA.
3.8 Bulletin 55 highlighted the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) has received a response
from HMT which outlined the factors behind the withdrawal of the MoU for the Immediate
Detriment framework. The response highlights that “Section 61 of the Equality Act 2010 does
not, in HMT’s opinion, allow for amendment of a member’s tax position. The response details
several tax complexities which have been identified and will be dealt with through
legislation.”
3.9 Readers were informed that the Public Service Pensions and Judicial Offices Bill
(PSPJO) received Royal Assent on 10 March 2022, thus becoming an act (PSPJOA 2022).
This will come into force on 1 April 2022. The PSPJOA 2022 legislation confirms the means
the government will remove the age discrimination as identified by the courts when the 2015

Page 49

reforms were introduced. The changes to the FPS 2015 were implemented to provide public
servers with increased certainty of the entitlements they will receive on a fairer basis, and
ensure the pension remains affordable going forward.
3.10 The Bulletin confirmed the LGA and SAB submitted their responses on 11 March 2022
to the Department for Work and Pensions consultation on the pension dashboard. The
response confirmed that whilst the LGA and SAB feel the dashboard will be beneficial, the
staging date which FRA’s are due to meet is very close to the implementation date of
McCloud and Matthews legislation. This will cause additional pressure on FRA’s to ensure
the data is available on time. The LGA and SAB requested a staging date of April 2025.
3.11 It was confirmed the Finance Act 2022 received Royal Assent on 24 February 2022 and
comes into force on 6 April 2022. There are two section which will have an impact on the
2015 remedy:
•
“Section 9: Annual allowance deadlines. Deadlines for electing for scheme pays and
associated payment and reporting deadlines will be extended for certain members who are
informed of a change in pension input amount for a past pension input period.
•
Section 11: Powers to change tax rules related to the McCloud remedy. The Act
provides HM Treasury (HMT) with wide powers to make regulations to address tax impacts
that arise as a result of implementing the McCloud remedy. Different regulations may apply
to different public service pension schemes. The regulations will have retrospective effect”.
Secondary legislation may be required although this is not anticipated until late 2022.
3.12 It was confirmed the timelines for members to make or amend a mandatory scheme
pay to pay for an annual allowance change is changing. The LGA is reviewing the changes
and how this will impact members. Further information will be provided in due course.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Bulletin Update contacts: Sally Wilson and Carrie Pearce
Contact details: E: sally.wilson@surreycc.gov.uk
E: carrie.pearce@surreycc.gov.uk
Annexes
Annex 1: FPS Bulletin 53
Annex 2: FPS Bulletin 54
Annex 3: FPS Bulletin 55

Page 50

FPS Bulletin 53 – January 2022
Welcome to issue 53 of the Firefighters’ Pensions Schemes bulletin.
We wish all readers a belated Happy New Year.
If you are looking for information on a certain topic, issue and content indexes are
held on the main bulletin page of the website and are updated following each new
issue.
If you have any comments on this bulletin, suggested items for future issues, or a job
you would like to advertise, please email bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.

Contents
Calendar of events

2

FPS

2

Immediate Detriment Framework – Update on position from FRAs

2

LGA response to Home Office consultation

3

Age discrimination remedy help and support

3

Administrator remedy self-assessment survey

3

Technical query log

4

FPS England SAB updates

4

LGA vacancy - Firefighters' Pensions Adviser - Governance

4

SAB response to Home Office consultation

4

SAB levy 2021-22 – Request for Purchase Order numbers

5

SAB SMA committee vacancy

5

Other News and Updates

5

DWP consultation on pensions dashboards

5

Public Service Pension Indexation and Revaluation 2022

6

TPO webinars

7

Judicial review challenging McCloud consultation dismissed

7

DWP responds to ‘stronger nudge’ consultation

7

Vacancy at Avon Fire and Rescue Service

8

HMRC

8

HMRC newsletters/bulletins

8

Managing Pension Schemes service – message to FRAs

8

Page 51

Events

9

FPS coffee mornings

9

Legislation

9

Useful links

10

Contact details

10

Copyright

10

Disclaimer

11

Calendar of events
Please see below a calendar of upcoming events relevant to the Firefighters’
Pension Schemes. Only those events which are hyperlinked are currently available
to book. If you have any events you would like to be included in a future bulletin,
please email bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.
Table 1: Calendar of events

Event

Date

FPS coffee morning

8 and 22 February 2022

North East regional group

16 February 2022

Fire Communications Working Group

1 March 2022

FPS Technical Group

7 March 2022

LGA Annual Fire Conference and
Exhibition
SAB

15 – 16 March 2022

SAB

23 June 2022

SAB

8 September 2022

SAB

8 December 2022

24 March 2022

FPS
Immediate Detriment Framework – Update on position from FRAs
We understand that FRAs are continuing to consider adoption of the Immediate
Detriment Framework.
2

Click here to return to Contents

Page 52

It would be useful for the LGA to know what the current position is in each FRA. We
will therefore shortly be contacting scheme managers to ask what arrangements are
currently in place for their FRA.
This information will be important for us to better understand the current landscape,
which means we will be best placed in our discussions with other parties to identify
any necessary solutions, and able to provide further support to FRAs where needed.
The latest guidance on the Framework, which was updated at the end of last year
following the statements from the Home Office and HM Treasury on immediate
detriment, can be found on the age discrimination page of the FPS Regulations and
Guidance. Log-in details are required to access the page and can be provided to
practitioners and administrators only.
LGA response to Home Office consultation
We reported in FPS Bulletin 51 that the Home Office had launched a consultation on
amendments to the pension scheme regulations to deliver the first set of changes to
remove the transitional protections from the FPS 2015.
On 2 January 2022, the LGA submitted its response to the consultation on the
prospective changes.
The changes are intended to come into force on 1 April 2022.
Age discrimination remedy help and support
With April 2022 on the horizon, we are conscious that FRAs and administrators will
be very much focused on remedy and the prospective changes which are due to
come into force on 1 April 2022.
We are also aware that the retrospective remedy will be at the forefront of people’s
minds. By now we expect that you are working through the guidance issued in FPS
Bulletin 44 and are gathering the data that you require to populate the FPS remedy
data collection template.
We want to support you in these efforts and ask for suggestions on ways in which
you feel that our resource and expertise may benefit you and your organisations. We
are planning on setting up some working groups and are happy to deliver training
and/or knowledge refreshers.
Please let us know what support you think would be useful by emailing the Bluelight
Pensions inbox bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.
Administrator remedy self-assessment survey
In addition to the above, readers may recall that last summer the Scheme Advisory
Board (SAB) launched an FRA remedy self-assessment survey. As part of their
statutory role to provide advice to scheme managers and Local Pension Boards in
relation to the efficient and effective administration and management of the FPS, the
Board wanted to understand more about arrangements for managing the pension
scheme and specifically for implementing the age discrimination remedy.
3

Click here to return to Contents

Page 53

To do this, the Board prepared a self-assessment survey to take a temperature
check of current arrangements. The survey was specifically aimed at FRAs and, as a
result, a research report was published in December’s edition of the bulletin. All
FRAs were also provided with individual feedback.
The data received was extremely useful and, with both Sargeant and Matthews
remedies on the horizon, we thought that it would be prudent to understand the
administrators’ position. With this in mind, we plan to launch an administrator survey.
The survey can be expected in the coming weeks and will be shared with our key
contacts within the relevant administrators.
Once the survey has closed, we will analyse the data and provide a report to the
SAB for a forthcoming meeting. Welsh administrators are also invited to complete
the survey and the data will be shared with the Welsh Scheme Advisory Board.
We ask that administrators are as open as possible when completing the survey, this
will help us consider what additional support and advice will be needed.
Technical query log
The current log of queries and responses is available on the FPS Regulations and
Guidance website. The queries have been anonymised and divided into topics. The
log is updated monthly in line with the bulletin release dates.
No new queries have been added this month.

FPS England SAB updates
LGA vacancy - Firefighters' Pensions Adviser - Governance
We are looking for someone to join us at the LGA to provide high-quality support to
the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) and FRAs’ Local Pension Boards as a
Firefighters’ Pensions Adviser – Governance on a home or office-based contract.
The ideal candidate will have knowledge and experience of the FPS and excellent
communication skills to support scheme stakeholders through a number of upcoming
legislative developments that will require clear and comprehensive information and
will bring with them significant administrative and communication challenges.
The closing date for applications has been extended to 18 February 2022 and
interviews will take place in the week commencing 7 March 2022.
Please contact claire.hey@local.gov.uk with any questions about the role.
SAB response to Home Office consultation
We reported in FPS Bulletin 51 that the Home Office had launched a consultation on
amendments to the pension scheme regulations to deliver the first set of changes to
remove the transitional protections from the FPS 2015.

4

Click here to return to Contents

Page 54

On 2 January 2022, the SAB submitted its response to the consultation on the
prospective changes.
The changes are intended to come into force on 1 April 2022.
SAB levy 2021-22 – Request for Purchase Order numbers
We are pleased to confirm that the SAB budget for 2021-22 has been approved by
the minister and the invoicing process has started.
In 2014, FRAs entered a shared arrangement to fund a technical adviser post to
support FRAs with their understanding and management of the Firefighters’ Pension
Schemes. The employers’ voluntary subscription is included in the final levy.
The total levy for the 2021-22 year will be £9.16 per firefighter, which is calculated at
£6.88 for the SAB and £2.28 for employers. A letter was sent by email to Chief Fire
Officers and HR Directors on 11 January 2022 advising them of this.
Devolved FRAs have also been sent levy requests with regard to the employer
advice service provided to them by the LGA.
The first stage of the process is for FRAs to provide a valid purchase order number,
stating the number of employees eligible to join one of the Firefighters’ Pension
Schemes as of 1 April 2021, using the form provided with the letter.
SAB SMA committee vacancy
The Board continues to carry a vacancy on the Scheme Management and
Administration (SMA) committee for an FRA LPB representative. The main
objectives of the committee are to provide guidance to the SAB to understand the
value and cost of administration and to consider how scheme managers and
administrators can best be supported by identifying best practice.
This is a great opportunity for an LPB member to get more involved with governance
at a national level and represent the views of the sector.
The required commitment is usually three to four meetings per year, and these are
currently being held virtually. If you are interested in sitting on the committee or
would like more information, please email bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.

Other News and Updates
DWP consultation on pensions dashboards
On 31 January 2022, the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) published a
consultation on draft Pensions Dashboards Regulations. The consultation closes on
13 March 2022.

5

Click here to return to Contents

Page 55

The purpose of this consultation is to seek views on a range of policy questions
relating to the creation of pensions dashboards. An indicative draft of the
Regulations is included to show how DWP envisage the policy would be turned into
law.
The Board has previously responded to requests for information on dashboard
implementation expressing concern around the potential value of dashboards for
firefighters and the suggested timescales for Public Service Pension Schemes to
make data available:
SAB response to DWP consultation – Pensions dashboards: Working together for
the consumer (January 2019)
SAB response to PDP call for input on dashboard staging (July 2021)
These responses may be useful when considering your replies.
In addition, the Pensions Dashboards Programme (PDP) published a report from
Ipsos Mori on 25 January 2022. The PDP had commissioned Ipsos Mori to
undertake qualitative research on the attitudes of potential dashboard users, their
circumstances, behaviours, and views of the dashboard concept.
On the same day, Rita Patel, Lead Analyst for the PDP, published a blog
summarising the report’s main findings, which are:
•
•
•
•
•

respondents reacted almost uniformly positively to the concept of dashboards
respondents expect to see value information, both accrued and projected
a find-only dashboard, which located pensions without displaying values, was
of limited appeal
a phased or partial service could negatively affect dashboards’ reception
dashboard users need to know what the service can and cannot do for them,
as well as having clear signposting of government backing, in order to
increase trust in its security.

DWP is hosting a series of webinars connected to the consultation to help
stakeholders form their responses. You can register for the webinars on the PDP
webpage publicising the consultation. There is also a range of documents to support
the consultation, outlining the scope of PDP’s standards.
Public Service Pension Indexation and Revaluation 2022
On 20 January 2022, HM Treasury issued written statement HCWS548 confirming
the Public Service Pension Indexation and Revaluation for 2022.
Public service pensions will be increased in line with the annual increase in the
Consumer Prices Index up to September 2021. The increase from 11 April 2022 is
3.1%.

6

Click here to return to Contents

Page 56

HMT has published the 2022 pensions increase multiplier tables and covering note
to the GOV.UK website in advance of the Pensions Increase (Review) Order being
laid.
FPS 2015 will use the figure of 4.1% as set out in the statement for the earnings
element of revaluation for active members to be applied at one second after midnight
on 31 March 2022.
TPO webinars
Following feedback from stakeholders, The Pensions Ombudsman (TPO) is running
a series of short webinars at the end of March. Topics will include:
•
•
•
•

A general introduction to TPO
The work of the Early Resolution Service
Volunteers
How to Avoid The Ombudsman

To register your interest in attending any of these events, email
stakeholder@pensions-ombudsman.org.uk.
Judicial review challenging McCloud consultation dismissed
On 15 December 2021, the High Court handed down its judgment dismissing the
judicial review brought by the Police Superintendents’ Association (PSA). The PSA
challenged the legality of the consultation remedying the discrimination identified in
the McCloud judgment in the unfunded public service schemes and the decision to
close the legacy schemes on 1 April 2022.
The Court upheld some aspects of the PSA’s claims. The Court found that the
Government had not given clear conscientious consideration to the consultation
responses before deciding to close the legacy schemes on 1 April 2022 and that
parts of the public sector equality duty were breached. The Court decided against
granting relief as it found it highly likely that the Government would have made the
same decisions if the breaches had not occurred.
The PSA has announced that it will seek leave to appeal to the Court of Appeal.
DWP responds to ‘stronger nudge’ consultation
The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) responded to the consultation
‘Stronger Nudge to pensions guidance’ on 17 January 2022.
On the same day, the DWP laid before Parliament the Occupational and Personal
Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) (Requirements to Refer Members to
Guidance etc) (Amendment) Regulations 2022.
The regulations come into force on 1 June 2022 and apply to England, Scotland, and
Wales. The regulations will require administrators of occupational pension schemes
to give to their members, in certain cases, a stronger nudge to Pension Wise
guidance.
7

Click here to return to Contents

Page 57

There is no action required by FPS administrators or practitioners, as the FPS does
not offer “flexible benefits” as defined by the Pension Schemes Act 2015.
Vacancy at Avon Fire and Rescue Service
Please see below details of a job opportunity at Avon Fire & Rescue Service. The
closing date is Mon 7 February.
Workplace Pensions Advisor | Yes You Can! The Avon Fire & Rescue Service Job
Site
This links through to the advert and then onto the JD. This is a very flexible role and
could be filled full or part time, and it can be a hybrid of home and office
working. There are good benefits in AF&RS and access to funded development as
well as the opportunity to branch out into other specialist areas

HMRC
HMRC newsletters/bulletins
On 17 January 2022, HMRC published Pension schemes newsletter 136 containing
important updates and guidance for schemes. The newsletter includes articles on:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Relief at source ― notification of residency status report for 2022 to 2023
Normal minimum pension age (NMPA)
Extension to some of the temporary changes to relief at source processes
Maintaining qualifying recognised overseas pension schemes (QROPS)
status
Pension flexibility statistics
Managing Pension Schemes service
Scheme Pays reporting

Managing Pension Schemes service – message to FRAs
On 18 January 2022, we emailed FRA FPS contacts and FPS pension
administrators with the following update from HMRC on the migration of pension
schemes from the Pension Schemes Online service to the Managing Pension
Schemes service:
“We’re currently planning to release the feature for migrating pension schemes in
early April 2022.
As currently planned, from mid-March 2022, you’ll no longer be able to compile and
submit an AFT return for any quarter from 1 April 2020 on the Pension Schemes
Online service.
This means that if you need to submit an AFT return for the quarter 1 January 2022
to 31 March 2022, you must migrate your pension scheme in time to compile and
submit the AFT return by the filing deadline of 15 May 2022.
8

Click here to return to Contents

Page 58

If you’ve compiled but not yet submitted a new AFT return on the Pension Schemes
Online service for any quarter from 1 April 2020, you also won’t be able to
successfully submit this on that service from mid-March.
To be able to migrate pension schemes, scheme administrators must be enrolled on
the Managing Pension Schemes service using their existing ‘A0’ administrator ID.
Scheme administrators with multiple administrator IDs will need to have completed
the process of setting up their ‘Master’ and ‘Ancillary’ IDs, and have enrolled using
their ‘Master’ ID.
Further information on this can be found in our Pension Schemes newsletter, which
was published on GOV.UK today and our guidance Migrating your pension scheme
to the Managing Pension Schemes service.
Please email migration.mps@hmrc.gov.uk if you have any questions or feedback on
the Managing Pension Schemes service, including the migration of pension
schemes.”

Events
FPS coffee mornings
Our MS Teams coffee mornings are continuing every second Tuesday. The informal
sessions lasting up to an hour allow practitioners to catch up with colleagues and
hear a brief update on FPS issues from the LGA Bluelight team.
The next session is due to take place on 8 February 2022.
We are pleased to include the presentations from recent sessions below:
11 January 2022 – Forward look 2022
25 January 2022 - Abatement
If you do not already receive the meeting invitations and would like to join us, please
email bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk. Please note that attendance at the coffee
mornings is generally restricted to FPS practitioners and managers.

Legislation
SI

Reference title

2022/30

The Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of
Information) (Requirements to Refer Members to Guidance etc.)
(Amendment) Regulations 2022

9

Click here to return to Contents

Page 59

Useful links
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Firefighters’ Pensions (England) Scheme Advisory Board
FPS Regulations and Guidance
FPS Member
Khub Firefighters Pensions Discussion Forum
FPS1992 guidance and commentary
The Pensions Regulator Public Service Schemes
The Pensions Ombudsman
HMRC Pensions Tax Manual
LGA pensions website
LGPS Regulations and Guidance
LGPC Bulletins
LGPS member site
Scottish Public Pensions Agency - Firefighters
Welsh Government Fire circulars

Contact details
Claire Hey (Senior Pensions Adviser)
Telephone: 07825 731 924
Email: claire.hey@local.gov.uk
Claire Johnson (Firefighters’ Pensions Adviser – Employers)
Email: claire.johnson@local.gov.uk

Copyright
Copyright remains with Local Government Association (LGA). This bulletin may be
reproduced without the prior permission of LGA provided it is not used for
commercial gain, the source is acknowledged and, if regulations are reproduced, the
Crown Copyright Policy Guidance issued by HMSO is adhered to.

10

Click here to return to Contents

Page 60

Disclaimer
The information contained in this bulletin has been prepared by the Bluelight
Pensions team, part of the Local Government Association (LGA). It represents the
views of the team and should not be treated as a complete and authoritative
statement of the law. Readers may wish, or will need, to take their own legal advice
on the interpretation of legislation. No responsibility whatsoever will be assumed by
the LGA for any direct or consequential loss, financial or otherwise, damage or
inconvenience, or any other obligation or liability incurred by readers relying on
information contained in this bulletin.
While every attempt is made to ensure the accuracy of the bulletin, it would be
helpful if readers could bring any perceived errors or omissions to the attention of the
Bluelight team by emailing bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.

11

Click here to return to Contents

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

FPS Bulletin 54 – February 2022
Welcome to issue 54 of the Firefighters’ Pensions Schemes bulletin.
If you are looking for information on a certain topic, issue and content indexes are
held on the main bulletin page of the website and are updated following each new
issue.
If you have any comments on this bulletin, suggested items for future issues, or a job
you would like to advertise, please email bluelightpensions@local.gov.uk.

Contents
Calendar of events

2

Actions arising

3

FPS

3

Immediate Detriment Framework update on current position

3

Abatement update

3

Preparation for 1 April 2022

4

Scheme members with fixed or enhanced lifetime allowance (LTA) protection

5

FPS contribution rates 2022-23

6

Administrator self-assessment survey launched

6

Technical query log

6

FPS England SAB updates

7

FPS Remedy 2015 – Your questions answered

7

Joanne Livingstone responds to letter from South Yorkshire Local Pension
Board

8

SAB SMA committee vacancy

8

Other News and Updates

8

Head of pensions

8

DWP consultation on pensions dashboards

8

TPO webinars

9

State Pension age review: call for evidence

10

Automatic enrolment trigger remains the same

10

HMRC

10

HMRC publishes Pension Schemes Newsletter 137

Page 63

10

Managing Pension Schemes service – migration of schemes
Events

11
11

FPS coffee mornings

11

Legislation

12

Useful links

12

Contact details

12

Copyright

12

Disclaimer

13

Calendar of events
Please see below a calendar of upcoming events relevant to the Firefighters’
Pension Schemes. Only those events which are hyperlinked are currently available
to book. If you have any events you would like to be included in a future bulletin,
please email bluelightpensions@local.gov.uk.
Table 1: Calendar of events

Event

Date

FPS coffee morning

8 and 22 March 2022

Fire Communications Working Group

1 March 2022

FPS Technical Group

7 March 2022

LGA Annual Fire Conference and
Exhibition
Eastern Region Fire Pension Group

15 – 16 March 2022

SAB

24 March 2022

SAB

23 June 2022

SAB

8 September 2022

SAB

8 December 2022

21 March 2022

2

Click here to return to Contents

Page 64

Actions arising
Readers are asked to note the following actions arising from the bulletin:
Abatement: Scheme managers to review abatement policy in light of Pensions
Ombudsman determination PO-25374.
Prospective remedy (1 April 2022): All parties to ensure changes needed for 1 April
2022 are in place before that date.
Administrator remedy self-assessment: Administrators to complete self-assessment
survey by 18 March 2022.

FPS
Immediate Detriment Framework update on current position
We know that FRAs are keen to understand the current position of the Immediate
Detriment Framework while they continue to consider adoption. For the time being,
the current position as reported in FPS Bulletin 52 – December 2021 remains
unchanged and FRAs taking decisions on cases following the withdrawal of the
Home Office guidance should speak to their nominated contact.
The LGA is continuing to press the government for further advice, and we are aware
that similar issues are now arising across the other public service schemes. We will
provide a more substantive update as soon as we are able.
To assist us with these discussions and to identify any necessary solutions we have
approached FRAs to clarify their current position on immediate detriment and
adoption of the Framework as well as any barriers they are encountering. FRAs were
asked to respond no later than 28 February and, at publication, we have received 25
replies.
As we are still waiting for a proportion of FRAs to respond, we are intending to
extend the deadline to Friday 4 March. FRAs who are yet to submit a response will
be contacted directly and encouraged to do so where possible.
Abatement update
Subscribers to our Coffee Mornings will recall that the session held on 7 February
2022 was dedicated to abatement. This was in light of the recent Pension
Ombudsman ruling – PO25374.
In summary, the FRA identified a re-employed pensioner who should have been
abated on reemployment but wasn’t and, as a result, an overpayment of pension
was identified, which the FRA sought to recover. The member challenged this as
they believed that the FRA had a duty of care to alert them at the outset that their
pension would be abated.

3

Click here to return to Contents

Page 65

The complaint was partially upheld. The Ombudsman determined that the FRA didn’t
have an additional duty of care to the member other than the requirement to provide
factually correct information. The complaint was upheld to the extent that the FRA
did not follow reasonable process when exercising their discretion under rule K4 of
FPS 1992 and making its decision to abate the members pension.
For those wishing to familiarise themselves with the presentation, the abatement
slides are available on the Coffee Morning section of the FPS Regs and guidance
website.
As suggested at the session, we have taken advice from the SAB’s legal advisor.
They were asked to provide an informal view on the PO determination and, as a
result, should FRAs consider changing their policy on blanket abatement.
The response confirmed that the PO determination is correct. The determination is
supported by case law on exercising discretions, and the process that should be
followed.
The main issue here is that the FRA had a blanket policy which stipulated abatement
would apply. This meant that there was no room for ‘discussion’ in terms of the
circumstances in which abatement would not apply.
The Board’s legal advisor confirmed that it would have been fine for the policy to
state that only in exceptional circumstances would abatement not apply, but even
then, the FRA would need to show on a case-by-case basis that consideration was
given as to whether any exceptional circumstances existed.
Action for FRAs – To review all existing policies on abatement and make necessary
changes to ensure that proper consideration is taken when agreeing whether
abatement should apply. It is also recommended that FRAs formally document each
decision to evidence that they have made an informed decision.
In addition to the above, FRA may now wish to revisit previous decisions and
possibly ‘correct’ any prior procedural deficiencies by now considering whether any
‘exceptional circumstances’ (as outlined in the FRAs policy) apply. If there are and
were ‘exceptional circumstances’ that existed, then the FRA would need to address
those on a case-by-case basis.
We are currently in the process of updating the abatement guidance, however, as
the existing factsheet doesn’t make any reference to the application of a blanket
abatement policy FRAs can be assured that they can still use the document.
Preparation for 1 April 2022
With April only weeks away we thought it would be prudent to provide FRAs and
administrators with some guidance as to what must happen to ensure a smooth
transition for their members.

4

Click here to return to Contents

Page 66

It should be common knowledge by now that with effect from 1 April 2022 all
protected members will be treated as members of the FPS 2015. The Public Service
Pensions & Judicial Offices Bill (PSPJO Bill) is clear that no-one can remain in the
legacy scheme from 1 April 2022. Payroll and administration systems must show the
member in the reformed scheme from 1 April 2022, this includes ensuring that the
correct contributions are being deducted.
You must also ensure that members are clear on which scheme they are in from 1
April 2022. To assist you with this, we have provided a suite of letters which we
recommend are used when communicating with members. In addition, as per our
disclosure factsheet, members must be informed of any change in their contribution
banding. It is recommended that this is communicated immediately, however, the
regulations do provide FRAs with three months’ grace.
Failure to comply with the above direction would constitute a legal risk for the
FRA which could result in further litigation.
Scheme members with fixed or enhanced lifetime allowance (LTA) protection
If, as an employer or administrator of the FPS you think that some of your members
may hold a form of fixed or enhanced protection from LTA charges, you need to tell
them, if you haven’t already, to act before 1 April 2022 if they want to avoid losing
their protection.
Your members may wish to seek independent financial advice to help them to
understand the impacts and decide the best course of action regarding protections
from lifetime allowance charges.
The government’s remedy proposals mean that individuals who originally lost their
enhanced or fixed protection solely due to joining the reformed scheme (and not due
to a subsequent action, such as benefit accrual) will not have lost their protection.
However, they will lose their protection if they accrue benefits under the reformed
scheme from 1 April 2022.
To keep fixed or enhanced protection:
•
•

individuals who have not yet joined the reformed scheme will need to opt out
of joining that scheme by 1 April 2022.
individuals already in the reformed scheme will need to stop accruing benefits
from 1 April 2022.

Members will need to speak to their scheme administrator about how to:
•
•

opt out of the reformed scheme
stop accruing benefits from 1 April 2022

Further guidance on what members need to do to reinstate their protection because
of the Sargeant remedy will be provided by HMRC/ HM Treasury at a later date.

5

Click here to return to Contents

Page 67

FPS contribution rates 2022-23
Banded contribution rates were introduced to the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 1992
and the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (England) 2006 by Statutory Instruments
2012/953 and 2012/954 respectively.
These rates have subsequently been amended each year by an amendment order to
the schemes. The most recent amendments1, which came into force on 1 April 2015,
listed the rates applicable from 2015-2016 to 2018-2019, including contribution rates
for Special Members of the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (England) 2006.
The Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 2015 was introduced on 1 April 2015 by SI
2014/2848. Regulation 110 set out details rates applicable from 2015-2016 to 20182019.
For 2019-2020, FRAs were instructed that the 2018-2019 rates would continue to
apply, due to the pause of the cost-cap mechanism. These rates will continue to
apply for 2022-2023. The contribution rate factsheet reminds FRAs of the
contribution rates set out in the above Regulations and Orders which will apply from
1 April 2022.
Administrator self-assessment survey launched
As mentioned in FPS Bulletin 53 – January 2022, we are pleased to confirm the
launch of our administrator self-assessment survey. The survey was emailed directly
to administrators on 24 February 2022. We are hoping that the survey will give us a
better understanding of the preparations which administrators have made in relation
to the implementation of the age discrimination remedy as well as their readiness for
Matthews and Pension Dashboards.
Once the survey has closed, we will analyse the data and provide a report to
the SAB for a forthcoming meeting. Welsh administrators are also invited to
complete the survey and the data will be shared with the Welsh Scheme Advisory
Board.
We ask that administrators are as open as possible when completing the survey, as
it will help us understand the challenges you are facing and consider what additional
support and advice is needed.
It would be greatly appreciated if responses could be submitted by 18 March 2022.
Technical query log
The current log of queries and responses is available on the FPS Regulations and
Guidance website. The queries have been anonymised and divided into topics. The
log is updated monthly in line with the bulletin release dates.

1

SI 2015/579, SI 2015/590
6

Click here to return to Contents

Page 68

Queries have been answered this month in the following categories: Compensation
Scheme (page 41) and Special Member (page 73). Queries from earlier months
have been grey shaded to differentiate from new items.

FPS England SAB updates
FPS Remedy 2015 – Your questions answered
Following the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) meeting of 30 September 2021 an
action was taken to commission a suite of illustrative member scenarios to provide
members with a better understanding of the implications of the McCloud/ Sargeant
remedy on their benefits. This is to include a selection of members personas across
the schemes, with benefits illustrated at a range of key retirement milestones.
Barnett Waddingham was appointed to deliver this work following a successful
procurement exercise and as part of the project, suggested delivery of a warm-up
communication to answer some key concerns or recurring questions that members
have about the changes that are due to take place on 1 April 2022 and beyond.
Even though there is a lot of information available, we still find that there are many
‘myths’, ‘untruths’, ‘fake news’ etc. circulating and it is clear from activity on various
social media platforms that some firefighters do have gaps in their knowledge when
it comes to remedy. We find it concerning that employees may be relying on these
forums to make life changing decisions and feel that it is appropriate and desirable
for individuals to be fully armed with factual information before making such
decisions.
We are therefore pleased to present the FPS 2015 Remedy ‘fact checker’ which has
been developed by Barnett Waddingham, in collaboration with the SAB the Board
secretariat, and the Scheme Management & Administration committee. We hope that
this document will alleviate some concerns and answer some unknown questions for
the FPS membership.
This document is intended to be circulated as widely as possible. We ask that you
distribute this within your authorities using your normal communication channels,
including uploading to any internal or external member-facing websites as
appropriate. The document text has been added as a new page to the FPS Member
2015 Remedy section, with the PDF available as a download.
Please note that the text around Annual Allowance limits has been updated since the
original version was circulated on 10 February, to confirm the lower tapering limit as
£4,000 and add context around when this might apply.
The illustrative scenarios are currently being finalised and will be provided in early
March.

7

Click here to return to Contents

Page 69

Joanne Livingstone responds to letter from South Yorkshire Local Pension
Board
On 25 January 2022, the chair of South Yorkshire FRA’s Local Pension Board (LPB)
wrote to the chair of the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) to express concern about the
withdrawal of the Home Office informal guidance on immediate detriment.
Joanne Livingstone responded on 18 February outlining action taken by the Board to
date and asking for agreement for the letters to be made public. The exchange of
letters has been published to a new page on the SAB website called
‘correspondence’.
The SAB is currently still awaiting a response to its letter to HM Treasury of 17
December 2021.
SAB SMA committee vacancy
The Board continues to carry a vacancy on the Scheme Management and
Administration (SMA) committee for an FRA LPB representative. The main
objectives of the committee are to provide guidance to the SAB to understand the
value and cost of administration and to consider how scheme managers and
administrators can best be supported by identifying best practice.
This is a great opportunity for an LPB member to get more involved with governance
at a national level and represent the views of the sector.
The required commitment is usually three to four meetings per year, and these are
currently being held virtually. If you are interested in sitting on the committee or
would like more information, please email bluelightpensions@local.gov.uk.

Other News and Updates
Head of pensions
As some of you will be aware, Jeff Houston is retiring from the role of Head of
Pensions at the LGA and Secretary to the Local Government Pension Scheme
Advisory Board (SAB) in England and Wales on 31 March 2022.
We are pleased to confirm that following a competitive recruitment exercise Joanne
Donnelly will be taking over the role from 1 April 2022. Jo is currently Senior
Pensions Secretary at the LGA and Deputy SAB secretary. She previously worked at
HM Treasury.
DWP consultation on pensions dashboards
As reported in FPS Bulletin 53 – January 2022, on 31 January 2022 the Department
for Work and Pensions (DWP) published a consultation on draft Pensions
Dashboards Regulations. The consultation will run for six weeks and close on
13 March 2022.

8

Click here to return to Contents

Page 70

Pensions Dashboards will allow individuals to see information about all their
pensions, including the State Pension, in one place. These draft regulations set the
requirements to be met to deliver this and will place a legal duty on pension
providers to provide information to the dashboards.
The consultation proposes a staging deadline of the end of April 2024 for public
service pension schemes, including the FPS. This means that FPS administrators
will need to be able to connect to the digital architecture by this date and be ready to
provide individuals’ data to them via the dashboards.
We will be responding to the consultation on behalf of the LGA and the SAB. Our
response will express concern about FPS administrators’ ability to meet the staging
deadline given the other pressures they face and the data that will be available at
that time.
We expect the McCloud remedy regulations to come into force from 1 October 2023.
FPS administrators will already be under huge pressure at this time, implementing
the retrospective part of remedy. We anticipate that the second options exercise for
special members of FPS 2006 (Matthews) may be underway by then too, adding
further resource pressure on FRAs and their administrators.
We have significant concern that the information available in April 2024 will not
reflect both the legacy and reformed scheme benefits that a member could choose
from at retirement. This is because the first set of annual benefit statements that will
include remedy benefits will not be issued until August 2024. Providing members will
incorrect or incomplete information could undermine the credibility of the dashboard
and decrease member engagement.
For these reasons, our response will state that we are doubtful that a staging
deadline of April 2024 is achievable.
TPO webinars
As a reminder, the Pensions Ombudsman (TPO) is running a series of short
webinars at the end of March. Topics will include:
• A general introduction to TPO
• The work of the Early Resolution Service
• Volunteers
• How to Avoid The Ombudsman
To register your interest in attending any of these events, email
stakeholder@pensions-ombudsman.org.uk.
The Ombudsman has also added three new factsheets to its website:
•
•
•

Death benefits
Ill health pensions
Pension scams

9

Click here to return to Contents

Page 71

State Pension age review: call for evidence
Under the Pensions Act 2014, the Government must undertake an independent
review of the State Pension age every six years. Baroness Neville-Rolfe will prepare
an independent review making recommendations to the Government on what
metrics it should consider when setting the State Pension age in future.
On 9 February 2022, DWP launched a call for evidence to gather views on this
subject to feed into that review. The independent report call for evidence will close
on 25 April 2022.
The call for evidence seeks views from members of the public and all interested
parties on various points including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Intergenerational fairness
Notice periods for State Pension age changes
Changes in working patterns
Predicted future changes to the workplace
Sustainability and affordability
Options for taking into account differences in circumstances when setting
State Pension age
What metrics should be considered to determine State Pension age.

Automatic enrolment trigger remains the same
DWP has published its review of the automatic enrolment trigger for 2022/23. The
earnings trigger will remain at £10,000. This is a real term decrease in the value of
the trigger and the Government estimates this will bring a further 17,000 savers into
pension savings, when compared to increasing the trigger in line with average wage
growth.

HMRC
HMRC publishes Pension Schemes Newsletter 137
On 28 February 2022, HMRC published Pension Schemes Newsletter 137, which
contains articles on:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Public service scheme members with fixed or enhanced protection
Loss of Lifetime Allowance protection
Relief at source
Digitisation of relief at source
Scheme Pays reporting
The managing pension schemes service

10

Click here to return to Contents

Page 72

Managing Pension Schemes service – migration of schemes
Pension schemes newsletter 137 provides an update on the migration of pension
schemes from the Pension Schemes Online service to the Managing Pension
Schemes service. The feature for migrating pension schemes will be available from
11 April 2022.
Scheme administrators must be enrolled on the Managing Pension Schemes service
to be able to migrate their pension schemes.
To migrate pension schemes to the Managing Pension Schemes service, you’ll need
to provide some up-to-date information for each scheme. The information can be
found in Appendix A of Pension Schemes Newsletter 136. We’d encourage you to
start collating this information, so you’re prepared to migrate your pension
scheme(s).
On the 11 April HMRC will provide further guidance on the new features being added
to the Managing Pension Schemes service.
Please email migration.mps@hmrc.gov.uk if you have any questions or feedback on
the Managing Pension Schemes service.

Events
FPS coffee mornings
Our MS Teams coffee mornings are continuing every second Tuesday. The informal
sessions lasting up to an hour allow practitioners to catch up with colleagues and
hear a brief update on FPS issues from the LGA Bluelight team.
The next session is due to take place on 8 March 2022 and will focus on
preparations for 1 April 2022.
We are pleased to include the presentations from recent sessions below:
7 February 2022 – Pension Dashboards – an overview (The Pensions Regulator)
22 February 2022 – Pension Dashboards (Featuring Heywood Pension
Technologies)
If you do not already receive the meeting invitations and would like to join us, please
email bluelightpensions@local.gov.uk. Please note that attendance at the coffee
mornings is generally restricted to FPS practitioners and managers.

11

Click here to return to Contents

Page 73

Legislation
SI

Reference title

2022/88

The Pension Protection Fund and Occupational Pension Schemes
(Levy Ceiling) Order 2022

2022/158

The Occupational Pension Schemes (Schemes that were Contractedout) (No. 2) (Amendment) Regulations 2022

Useful links
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Firefighters’ Pensions (England) Scheme Advisory Board
FPS Regulations and Guidance
FPS Member
Khub Firefighters Pensions Discussion Forum
FPS1992 guidance and commentary
The Pensions Regulator Public Service Schemes
The Pensions Ombudsman
HMRC Pensions Tax Manual
LGA pensions website
LGPS Regulations and Guidance
LGPC Bulletins
LGPS member site
Scottish Public Pensions Agency - Firefighters
Welsh Government Fire circulars

Contact details
Claire Hey (Senior Pensions Adviser)
Telephone: 07825 731 924
Email: claire.hey@local.gov.uk
Claire Johnson (Firefighters’ Pensions Adviser – Employers)
Email: claire.johnson@local.gov.uk

Copyright
Copyright remains with Local Government Association (LGA). This bulletin may be
reproduced without the prior permission of LGA provided it is not used for
commercial gain, the source is acknowledged and, if regulations are reproduced, the
Crown Copyright Policy Guidance issued by HMSO is adhered to.

12

Click here to return to Contents

Page 74

Disclaimer
The information contained in this bulletin has been prepared by the Bluelight
Pensions team, part of the Local Government Association (LGA). It represents the
views of the team and should not be treated as a complete and authoritative
statement of the law. Readers may wish, or will need, to take their own legal advice
on the interpretation of legislation. No responsibility whatsoever will be assumed by
the LGA for any direct or consequential loss, financial or otherwise, damage or
inconvenience, or any other obligation or liability incurred by readers relying on
information contained in this bulletin.
While every attempt is made to ensure the accuracy of the bulletin, it would be
helpful if readers could bring any perceived errors or omissions to the attention of the
Bluelight team by emailing bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.

13

Click here to return to Contents

Page 75

HMT has published the 2022 pensions increase multiplier tables and covering note
to the GOV.UK website in advance of the Pensions Increase (Review) Order being
laid.

For those grappling with Firefighters’
pensions, Perspective provides the very
FPS 2015 will use the figure of 4.1% as set out in the statement for the earnings
best tool
tomembers
find the
rightatanswer!
element of revaluation
for active
to be applied
one second after midnight
on 31 March 2022.

TPO webinars
Following feedback from stakeholders, The Pensions Ombudsman (TPO) is running
a series of short webinars at the end of March. Topics will include:
A general introduction to TPO
The work of the Early Resolution Service
Volunteers
How to Avoid The Ombudsman
To register your interest in attending any of these events, email
stakeholder@pensions-ombudsman.org.uk.
Judicial review challenging McCloud consultation dismissed
On 15 December 2021, the High Court handed down its judgment dismissing the
judicial review brought by the Police Superintendents’ Association (PSA). The PSA
challenged the legality of the consultation remedying the discrimination identified in
the McCloud judgment in the unfunded public service schemes and the decision to
close the legacy schemes on 1 April 2022.
The Court upheld some aspects of the PSA’s claims. The Court found that the
Government had not given clear conscientious consideration to the consultation
responses before deciding to close the legacy schemes on 1 April 2022 and that
parts of the public sector equality duty were breached. The Court decided against
granting relief as it found it highly likely that the Government would have made the
same decisions if the breaches had not occurred.
• News stories, consultations and regulatory
KEY FEATURES
The
PSA
has
announced
that
it
will
seek
leave
to appeal
the Court pensions
of Appeal.
updates
relating to
to Firefighters’
• Consolidated versions of the 3 main sets of
included in our daily news service;
Scheme Regulations (and for each scheme,
DWP
responds
to ‘stronger
• Ability to annotate the text of any legislative
different
jurisdictions:
for example,nudge’
we have consultation
or other
document,to
enabling
your most
versions for
of the
1992 and
Pension
Theseparate
Department
Work
Pensions (DWP)
responded
the consultation
experienced
team
members
to
share their
Scheme
Order
for
each
of
England,
Wales
‘Stronger Nudge to pensions guidance’ on 17 January 2022.
knowledge with their less experienced
and Scotland);
colleagues;
• Ability to see Firefighters’ Regulations as in

On the same day, the DWP laid before Parliament the Occupational and Personal
• Powerful search engine allowing you to
force on any date in the past or at any date
Pension
Schemes (Disclosure of Information)
(Requirements
to Refer (over
Members to
search
the whole of Perspective
in the future (known as Time Travel);
Guidance
etc)
(Amendment)
Regulations
2022.
30,000
documents)
or
confine
the
search to
• Help schemes deal with the legislative
implications of McCloud;

documents relating to firefighters’ pensions.

The regulations come into force on 1 June 2022 and apply to England, Scotland, and
Forrequire
furtheradministrators
details pleaseofcontact:
Wales. The regulations will
occupational pension schemes
to give to their members, inraf.shergold@pendragon.co.uk
certain cases, a stronger nudge to Pension Wise
guidance.
020 7608 9022

Page 76

FPS Bulletin 55 – March 2022
Welcome to issue 55 of the Firefighters’ Pensions Schemes bulletin.
If you are looking for information on a certain topic, issue and content indexes are
held on the main bulletin page of the website and are updated following each new
issue.
If you have any comments on this bulletin, suggested items for future issues, or a job
you would like to advertise, please email bluelightpensions@local.gov.uk.

Contents
Calendar of events

2

Actions arising

2

FPS

3

Home Office consultation response and amending legislation

3

Matthews – Second options exercise

4

Member communications post 1 April 2022

5

Contingent decisions – Optant outs

5

Cost control valuation 2016 finalised

6

Top up grant 2022 – Collection of pensions accounting data

7

FPS annual update 2022

8

Technical query log

8

FPS England SAB updates

9

FPS 1992 Scotland – commutation provisions
HMT respond to the SAB on immediate detriment
Other News and Updates

9
10
11

PSPJOA 2022 receives Royal Assent

11

DWP consultation on pensions dashboards

11

The Finance Act 2022

12

Mandatory scheme pays deadlines are changing

12

Job vacancy at the LGA

13

Events

13

FPS coffee mornings

13

Legislation

13

Page 77

Useful links

14

Contact details

15

Copyright

15

Disclaimer

15

Calendar of events
Please see below a calendar of upcoming events relevant to the Firefighters’
Pension Schemes. Only those events which are hyperlinked are currently available
to book. If you have any events you would like to be included in a future bulletin,
please email bluelightpensions@local.gov.uk.
Table 1: Calendar of events

Event

Date

FPS coffee morning

5 and 19 April 2022

SAB

23 June 2022

SAB

8 September 2022

SAB

8 December 2022

Actions arising
Readers are asked to note the following actions arising from the bulletin:
Matthews: No later than 31 May 2022 FRAs to inform LGA of total numbers of
member, split by scheme (FPS 1992, FPS 2006), affected by aggregation.
Member communication post 1 April 2022: FRAs to contact all current former
protected members and provide key features of FPS 2015 communication.
Top up grant 2022 – Collection of pensions accounting data: In addition to the
pensions income/expenditure data that you will be submitting on DELTA, FRAs to
send the Home Office electronic copies of the trial balances from audited accounts
where the pensions income/expenditure data was extracted for completion of the
audited 2020/21 DELTA return, to include any post balance sheet adjustment
events.
2

Click here to return to Contents

Page 78

FPS
Home Office consultation response and amending legislation
On 8 March 2022, the Home Office published its consultation response on
prospective remedy, along with a frequently asked questions document.
The consultation response confirms the amendments to the pension scheme
regulations which will deliver the first set of changes and remove the transitional
protections from the FPS 2015. In addition, it confirms provisions for an ill health
underpin which will ensure that a protected member who applies for ill health
retirement before 31 March 2022, and which is determined in their favour after that
date, is treated no less favourably than if the application had been determined on
that date.
The Home Office has identified one scenario where a member who transitions on 1
April 2022 with an ill-health decision pending could be placed in a worse position.
This would be where a legacy FPS 1992 member moves across to the FPS 2015
and does not meet the qualifying criteria for ill-health retirement in the FPS 2015 but
would have met the corresponding criteria under the legacy FPS 1992.
To avoid any such members being in a worse position than if the decision had
concluded prior to 1 April 2022, changes have been made to the FPS 2015
regulations which mean that the member is assessed for ill-health retirement against
a Normal Pension Age (NPA) of 55
The response also makes provisions to allow arrangements for members who are
purchasing service in the legacy schemes by way of periodical contributions, entered
before 1 April 2022, to continue on after that date.
These changes enact the policy announced in February 2021 and are consequential
to the provisions in the Public Service Pensions and Judicial Offices Act 2022
(PSPJOA 2022) which received Royal Assent on 10 March.
The Police and Firefighters’ Pension Schemes (Amendment) Regulations 2022 were
laid in parliament on 21 March. The amendments come into force on 1 April 2022
and enable the prospective elements of the 2015 Remedy as set out in the
consultation.
A further Home Office consultation will take place later in the year on the
retrospective amendments that are required to fully deliver the remedy. This includes
establishing the deferred choice underpin (DCU) and the changes needed to offer
pensioners and beneficiaries of deceased scheme members an immediate choice
between legacy or reformed scheme benefits.

3

Click here to return to Contents

Page 79

Matthews – Second options exercise
Readers may be aware of the category of members of the Firefighters’ Pension
Scheme 2006 (FPS 2006) known as “special members” who were introduced in
2014, following Matthews v Kent and Medway Towns Fire Authority & others, which
allowed retained firefighters employed between 1 July 2000 and 5 April 2006 to join
the FPS 2006 with retrospective effect to 1 July 2000.
A time-limited options exercise took place between 2014 and 2015 to allow eligible
individuals to join the FPS. While the benefits awarded to special members largely
mirrored the benefits under the FPS 1992, the FPS 2006 was amended as the FPS
1992 was closed.
More recently, work has again had to take place on the pensions aspect of
"Matthews", following the European Court of Justice’s decision in O’Brien v Ministry
of Justice concerning fee paid judges in the Judicial Pension Scheme. The judgment
held that remedy could extend back before the Part-time Workers Directive was
required to be implemented on 7 April 2000.
On 9 March 2022, after an extended period of negotiations, a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) was agreed between the government, the Fire Brigades
Union, the Fire & Rescue Services Association, and FRA employers.
It was confirmed that remedy for retained firefighters affected by the O’Brien
judgment will be provided by way of a second options exercise allowing in-scope
individuals the opportunity to purchase pension entitlement as a special member of
the FPS 2006. More details on the scope and mechanics of the settlement are
available in our summary of "Matthews" MoU and second options exercise factsheet.
The regulations to implement the second options exercise in England will be drafted
by the Home Office and consulted on before they are laid before Parliament. The
Home Office has a maximum period of 18 months to draft, consult, and introduce the
necessary secondary legislation.
FRAs will be expected to start the second options exercise as soon as possible after
the legislation comes into force. The exercise will run for a maximum period of 18
months.
Prior to the legislation coming into force, FRAs are advised to take steps to identify
retained firefighters who were employed between the relevant dates and ascertain
what steps were taken to identify and contact individuals who were eligible for the
first options exercise. This will help FRAs determine whether the retained firefighter
is in scope again this time around.

4

Click here to return to Contents

Page 80

We have also asked FRAs to identify any retained firefighters who have transferred
from retained to wholetime employment and maybe subject to aggregation. For
clarity, the individual must have been in retained employment at some point between
7 April 2000 and 5 April 2006 and they must have joined wholetime employment
without a break in, or overlap of, service. Once these individuals have been
identified, and no later than 31 May 2022, FRAs should email
bluelightpensions@local.gov.uk with the total number of members, split by scheme
that the firefighter joined in respect of their wholetime employment, for example, FPS
1992 = 3, FPS 2006 = 5.
Member communications post 1 April 2022
On 8 March 2022, the FPS Coffee Morning was dedicated to the preparation for
prospective remedy. Attendees were reminded that all current members of the
Firefighters’ Pension Schemes who remain active employees beyond 31 March 2022
do so as a member of FPS 2015. Full details on what action must be taken can also
be found in FPS Bulletin 54 – February 2022.
It was agreed that, in addition to distributing the protected member letter in advance
of 1 April 2022, FRAs should contact all protected members once the transition into
FPS 2015 has taken place; this is to ensure that members become familiar with
some key features of the scheme. To help FRAs with this we have provided a
protected member communication post-April 2022 that can be used. It is strongly
advised that FRAs send this communication to all former protected active members
as soon as possible.
Contingent decisions – Optant outs
On 25 March 2022, we shared a communication with relevant stakeholders on
contingent decisions, more specifically on the area of optant outs. The
communication confirmed that, due to the pension changes in 2015 and the
subsequent introduction of FPS 2015, some firefighters chose to opt out of the
pension scheme rather than transition into FPS 2015. The government has
recognised in its Public Service Pensions consultation response that some members
would have taken a different course of action had they known that continued
membership of their legacy scheme (FPS 1992, FPS 2006 including special
members) during the remedy period was an option. The government therefore
intends to legislate for decisions such as this through the contingent decision aspect
of the retrospective legislation. This is confirmed in section 5 of the PSPJOA.
Although the final policy on this matter is yet to be determined and we cannot
provide any guarantees that a particular case will be deemed a contingent decision,
we thought it would be prudent to bring the matter to FRAs’ attention so that action
can be taken where required.

5

Click here to return to Contents

Page 81

It is our understanding that contingent decisions only cover the remedy period (1
April 2015 to 31 March 2022). This means that should a member remain opted out
beyond 1 April 2022 they may, under retrospective legislation, be given the option to
buy back their opted-out service which occurred during the remedy period. However,
it is unlikely that regulations will permit them to buy back service after 31 March
2022. This could therefore mean that their pension would remain deferred with a
payment age of 60 for FPS 1992 and 65 for FPS 2006 (special members have a
deferred payment age of 60), regardless of whether they buy back the opted-out
service during the remedy period.
We understand that some members have indicated that they want to buy back their
opted-out service for the remedy period, as they want to retire as an active member.
If this is the case, members should speak with their pension/payroll department and
arrange to be opted back into the FPS on or before 1 April 2022.
FRAs were strongly advised to communicate this message with staff.
As expected, this communication generated a significant amount of interest from
members, and we received many questions in respect of this. Unfortunately, as a
final policy decision is yet to be determined, we cannot provide any more clarity on
this matter. We understand that members have questions about whether the
contingent decision provision captures them and their personal set of circumstances.
We also understand that members want to understand the cost implications and
what repayment options may look like. However, we cannot provide definitive further
clarity at this time. We appreciate that this is frustrating for all concerned and give
our assurance that more detail will be provided as and when it is available.
Cost control valuation 2016 finalised
Following HM Treasury's publication of Amending Directions in October 2021, the
Home Office has finalised the 2016 valuations for the FPS providing certainty on the
outcome to scheme members.
On 16 March 2022, the final outcome of the cost-control element of the 2016
valuation for the FPS in England was published, confirming a breach to the cost cap
ceiling of 14.6%.
This process had previously been paused following the uncertainty arising from the
McCloud and Sargeant judgments and was ‘un-paused’ in 2020.
The report confirms that the cost control element 2016 valuation is not used to set
the employer contribution rate and changes to the employer contribution rates
resulting from the 2020 valuations will take effect from April 2024.

6

Click here to return to Contents

Page 82

In 2021, the government announced proposed reforms to the Cost Control
Mechanism which will be implemented in time for the 2020 valuations. These
reforms do not affect the 2016 valuations as the government previously decided that
it would be inappropriate to reduce member benefits based on a mechanism that
may not be working as intended.
The government therefore announced that any ceiling breaches found when
schemes complete the 2016 valuations will be waived. This means that no member
will face a reduction in their benefits as a result of the 2016 valuation.
We reported in November that unions across the public sector had launched a
judicial review against the government about including McCloud/ Sargeant remedy
costs in the cost control mechanism. The provisional results of the 2016 cost cap
valuation showed that all public service schemes were cheaper than expected. This
would have led to a reduction in contributions or improvements in benefits from April
2019 had the cost control process not been paused.
The Home Office has published a set of FAQs on the valuation results to assist
stakeholders.
Top up grant 2022 – Collection of pensions accounting data
On 28 March 2022, the Home Office sent an email to Claim Certifiers and
Administrators to advise that FRAs should now be working towards submitting
audited 2020/21 and unaudited 2021/22 pensions income/expenditure data as part
of this year’s top up grant claim. This year’s pension accounting data will need to be
submitted on the DELTA online data collection system. Notification will be sent via
DELTA when the forms go live in the first week of April.
ACTION: In addition to the pensions income/expenditure data to be submitted on
DELTA, the Home Office is also requesting that all FRAs provide electronic copies of
the trial balances from audited accounts where the pensions income/expenditure
data was extracted for completion of the audited 2020/21 DELTA return by email, to
include any post balance sheet adjustment events. These should be sent to
Anthony.Mooney@homeoffice.gov.uk.
Also, please let Anthony Mooney know if you have had a change in staff from last
year’s submission as they will need to be set up on DELTA to be able to input data.
Please note that this information is needed by Friday 13 May 2022 to enable the
relevant checks to be undertaken (and further clarification sought from FRAs where
necessary) in time to make the next batch of grant payments in July.
The Home Office will only be able to make Top Up grant payments on any claims
that they can validate as being correct and, as such, failure to provide the requested
information, or the submission of incomplete information, will delay any grant
payments due in July.
7

Click here to return to Contents

Page 83

Please also note that there are a number of automatic comparison checks on the
data that you submit on DELTA with the data that you previously submitted. The
automatic checks include:
1. a cross-reference check on the audited 2020/21 pension income/expenditure
data with the unaudited 2020/21 pension income/expenditure data submitted
last year by each FRA. This level of check will be necessary as it will be the
last chance to identify errors before the period falls outside the Top Up grant’s
3-year financial cycle; and
2. a cross-reference check on the unaudited 2021/22 pension
income/expenditure data with the updated forecast 2021/22 pensions
income/expenditure data (submitted by each FRA in August 2021).
If the variances breach certain tolerance levels, then the DELTA form will request a
short explanation to explain the difference before the form can submitted.
The DELTA forms also include a ‘declaration form’ link which sets out the terms of
the submission – effectively this details what data should be included/excluded from
the returns. Please note that this does not need to be signed and returned but
should be read and applied before finalising your submissions.
Please contact Anthony.Mooney@homeoffice.gov.uk if you have any questions.
FPS annual update 2022
We confirmed in FPS Bulletin 54 – February 2022 that FPS contribution rates
remained unchanged for 2021-22.
All relevant thresholds and rate changes for 2022 are available in the FPS annual
update 2022.
All relevant legislation can be viewed on our website under annual update Statutory
Instruments.
Technical query log
The current log of queries and responses is available on the FPS Regulations and
Guidance website. The queries have been anonymised and divided into topics. The
log is updated monthly in line with the bulletin release dates. There have been no
new queries added this month.

8

Click here to return to Contents

Page 84

FPS England SAB updates
FPS 1992 Scotland – commutation provisions
On 24 December 2021, the Scottish Public Pensions Agency (SPPA), on behalf of
the Scottish Government, conducted a public consultation inviting stakeholders to
register their views on changes to existing provisions for commutation in the FPS
1992.
Those changes were proposed following discussions at the Police Scheme Advisory
Board on two aspects of commutation in the equivalent legacy police scheme.
Having reached a position on those aspects with police stakeholders, and given the
similarities in the legacy schemes, Scottish Ministers were of the view that similar
consideration should be given to the equivalent firefighters’ provisions.
The first aspect concerned the existing commutation factor underpin, which gives
retiring firefighters access to the commutation factor available to an equivalent
firefighter in England, should that provide for a higher lump sum. This underpin was
due to expire on 31 March 2022, and Scottish Ministers proposed to extend this
indefinitely.
Secondly, regulation B7 of the FPS 1992 allows commutation of pension to a taxfree lump sum. Generally, this allows a member to commute up to 25 per cent of
their pension to a lump sum on an actuarially neutral basis, but where the member is
at least age 50, has more than 25 years’ but less than 30 years’ service and retires
before the age of 55, a commutation restriction is applied.
In those cases, a lump sum of no more than two and a quarter times the member’s
pension can be paid. The proposed changes remove this cap entirely, allowing all
firefighters who are entitled to an ordinary pension to commute up to the maximum
25 per cent of their pension.
The consultation closed on 1 February 2022 and the amending regulations were laid
on 3 March 2022. The proposals were adopted in full. The changes due to come into
force on 1 April 2022 and the changes to the commutation cap will not be
retrospective.
We have been approached by several stakeholders asking whether there are any
immediate implications for English FRAs as a result of the removal of the
commutation restriction in Scotland and, if not, if there is any intention for the
regulations for England to be amended in due course. The change to the Scottish
regulations has no direct impact on English FRAs; regulation B7(5) for the Firemen's
Pension Scheme Order 1992 (England) remains in force and restricted commutation
continues.

9

Click here to return to Contents

Page 85

It should be noted that there are a number of substantive differences between the
management and governance of the FPS in England and in Scotland. For example,
the Scottish FRS is a single FRA employer with a single administrator, the
responsible authority is also the scheme manager, and different funding
arrangements apply.
Since 2013, FRAs in England have had the discretion to pay a lump sum in excess
of two and a quarter times the full amount of the pension under regulation B7(5A). If
an FRA chooses to use this discretion, an amount equal to the difference between
the restricted and unrestricted lump sum has to be paid by the FRA into the pension
account. There could therefore be a financial implication for FRAs if the restriction
was removed entirely.
Commutation is an HM Treasury (HMT) policy and any change to the policy would
also require an amendment to the scheme regulations. Scottish government did not
need HMT consent in order to implement the change in Scotland.
A discussion paper was taken to the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) on 24 March
2022 to ask Board members to consider whether the Home Office, as responsible
authority, should be asked to consider a change to the regulations.
Concerns were raised at the meeting in relation to impact on workforce planning,
financial implications, and member welfare (ensuring that members have sufficient
long-term monthly income in retirement, if retiring at a younger age and ‘cashing in’
more of their pension). The Board established that it would need to understand more
about the impact on the members, employers, and the scheme, before any formal
application is made to the Home Office. The secretariat has taken an action to follow
up on obtaining this data and an update will be provided to Board members at a
future meeting.
HMT respond to the SAB on immediate detriment
We reported in FPS Bulletin 52 that the chair of the SAB had written an open letter to
HMT on the withdrawal of the Home Office informal guidance on immediate
detriment. The letter, dated 17 December 2021, asked for more information on the
risks and uncertainties which HMT said arose as a result of processing cases ahead
of legislation.
On 23 March 2022, HMT provided a response outlining the factors behind the
withdrawal in more detail. The response highlights that Section 61 of the Equality Act
2010 does not, in HMT’s opinion, allow for amendment of a member’s tax position.
The response details several tax complexities which have been identified and will be
dealt with through legislation.
The SAB acknowledges the response, which has been shared with the LGA and the
FBU as parties to the Memorandum of Understanding/ Immediate Detriment
Framework.
10

Click here to return to Contents

Page 86

Other News and Updates
PSPJOA 2022 receives Royal Assent
The Public Service Pensions and Judicial Offices Bill received Royal Assent on 10
March 2022 and became the Public Service Pensions and Judicial Offices Act 2022
(PSPJOA 2022), which will come into force on 1 April 2022.
The PSPJOA 2022 legislates for how the government will remove the discrimination
identified by the courts in the way that the 2015 reforms were introduced for some
members.
The main elements of the Act are:
•

Changes implemented across all the main public service pension schemes in
response to the Court of Appeal judgment in the McCloud and Sargeant
cases.

•

Eligible members of the main unfunded pension schemes have a choice of
the benefits they wish to take for the “remedy period” of April 2015 to 31
March 2022.

•

From 1 April 2022, when the remedy period ends, all those in service in main
unfunded schemes will be members of the reformed pension schemes,
ensuring equal treatment from that point on.

•

Bespoke measures implement corresponding changes in the Judicial Pension
Schemes and Local Government Pension Scheme to reflect their different
arrangements.

•

Ensures there are no reductions to member benefits as a result of the 2016
cost control valuations.

These changes provide public service workers with greater certainty of their benefit
entitlements. Going forwards, public servants will receive guaranteed pension
benefits, but on a fairer basis, and in a way that ensures that they are affordable and
sustainable into the future.
DWP consultation on pensions dashboards
On 11 March 2022, the LGA and SAB submitted their responses to the Department
for Work and Pensions (DWP) consultation on the draft Pensions Dashboards
Regulations 2022 in respect of the Firefighters' Pension Schemes.

11

Click here to return to Contents

Page 87

Pensions Dashboards will allow individuals to see information about all their
pensions, including the State Pension, in one place. These draft regulations set the
requirements to be met to deliver this and will place a legal duty on pension
providers to provide information to the dashboards. The consultation proposes a
staging deadline of the end of April 2024 for public service pension schemes,
including the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme. This means that Fire scheme
administrators will need to be able to connect to the digital architecture by this date
and be ready to provide individuals’ data to them via the dashboards.
While the LGA and SAB are supportive of dashboards and their purpose, there are
strong concerns over the proposed staging schedule given the conflicting pressures
faced by administrators and the data that will be available at that time. The LGA
response to the DWP consultation and the SAB response to the DWP consultation
both therefore ask for the staging date to be delayed a further 12 months until April
2025.
The Finance Act 2022
The Finance Act 2022 received Royal Assent on 24 February 2022 and comes into
force on 6 April 2022. Sections 9 and 11 will have consequential impact on the 2015
Remedy for the FPS:
•

Section 9: Annual allowance deadlines. Deadlines for electing for scheme
pays and associated payment and reporting deadlines will be extended for
certain members who are informed of a change in pension input amount for a
past pension input period.

•

Section 11: Powers to change tax rules related to the McCloud remedy. The
Act provides HM Treasury (HMT) with wide powers to make regulations to
address tax impacts that arise as a result of implementing the McCloud
remedy. Different regulations may apply to different public service pension
schemes. The regulations will have retrospective effect.

More information on the likely powers under section 11 can be found in the HMRC
policy note issued in October 2021. Any measures will require secondary HMT
legislation to implement, which is not anticipated until later in 2022
Mandatory scheme pays deadlines are changing
The Finance Act 2022 and the Registered Pension Schemes (Miscellaneous
Amendments) Regulations 2022 (‘the new regulations’) will change the timescale for
members to make or amend a mandatory scheme pays election when paying an
annual allowance charge. The changes will apply when the information used to
calculate a member’s pension input amount is retrospectively amended.
The LGA is currently reviewing the impact of these changes and we will provide
more information in due course.
12

Click here to return to Contents

Page 88

Job vacancy at the LGA
The Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) to the LGPS in England and Wales is looking for
a Pensions Secretary. The successful candidate will provide professional support to
the SAB and its committees and will also lead on developing the SAB’s digital
presence.
For more information and to apply see the Jobtrain website. The closing date is 19
April 2022.

Events
FPS coffee mornings
Our MS Teams coffee mornings are continuing every second Tuesday. The informal
sessions lasting up to an hour allow practitioners to catch up with colleagues and
hear a brief update on FPS issues from the LGA Bluelight team.
The next session is due to take place on 5 April 2022.
We are pleased to include the presentations from recent sessions below:
8 March 2022 – Preparing for prospective remedy
22 March 2022 – ‘Matthews’ and the 2023 options exercise
If you do not already receive the meeting invitations and would like to join us, please
email bluelightpensions@local.gov.uk. Please note that attendance at the coffee
mornings is generally restricted to FPS practitioners and managers.

Legislation
Acts
Public Service Pensions and Judicial Offices Act 2022
SI

Reference title

2022/79

The Firemen’s Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Scotland) Order 2022

2022/103

The Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (Scotland) Amendment Regulations
2022

2022/215

The Public Service Pensions Revaluation Order 2022

2022/216

The Social Security Revaluation of Earnings Factors Order 2022
13

Click here to return to Contents

Page 89

2022/232

The Social Security (Contributions) (Rates, Limits and Thresholds
Amendments and National Insurance Funds Payments) Regulations
2022

2022/259

The Occupational Pensions Schemes (Fund Compensation Levy)
(Amendment) Regulations 2022

2022/297

The Guaranteed Minimum Pensions Increase Order 2022

2022/333

The Pensions Increase (Review) Order 2022

2022/336

The Police and Firefighters’ Pension Schemes Amendment
Regulations 2022

2022/343

The Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations
2022

2022/392

The Registered Pension Scheme (Miscellaneous Amendments)
Regulations 2022

Useful links
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Firefighters’ Pensions (England) Scheme Advisory Board
FPS Regulations and Guidance
FPS Member
Khub Firefighters Pensions Discussion Forum
FPS1992 guidance and commentary
The Pensions Regulator Public Service Schemes
The Pensions Ombudsman
HMRC Pensions Tax Manual
LGA pensions website
LGPS Regulations and Guidance
LGPC Bulletins
LGPS member site
Scottish Public Pensions Agency - Firefighters
Welsh Government Fire circulars

14

Click here to return to Contents

Page 90

Contact details
Claire Hey (Senior Pensions Adviser)
Telephone: 07825 731 924
Email: claire.hey@local.gov.uk
Claire Johnson (Firefighters’ Pensions Adviser – Employers)
Email: claire.johnson@local.gov.uk

Copyright
Copyright remains with Local Government Association (LGA). This bulletin may be
reproduced without the prior permission of LGA provided it is not used for
commercial gain, the source is acknowledged and, if regulations are reproduced, the
Crown Copyright Policy Guidance issued by HMSO is adhered to.

Disclaimer
The information contained in this bulletin has been prepared by the Bluelight
Pensions team, part of the Local Government Association (LGA). It represents the
views of the team and should not be treated as a complete and authoritative
statement of the law. Readers may wish, or will need, to take their own legal advice
on the interpretation of legislation. No responsibility whatsoever will be assumed by
the LGA for any direct or consequential loss, financial or otherwise, damage or
inconvenience, or any other obligation or liability incurred by readers relying on
information contained in this bulletin.
While every attempt is made to ensure the accuracy of the bulletin, it would be
helpful if readers could bring any perceived errors or omissions to the attention of the
Bluelight team by emailing bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.

15

Click here to return to Contents

Page 91

This page is intentionally left blank

Inherent Risk

Residual risk

F2

2

4

2

8

3

24

Likely

22

Total

2

TREAT
1) Implementation and monitoring of a Data Improvement Plan by the pension
administration team.
2) The Board will be made aware of the 2020 data scores. The service will work
with Pensions Admin on improving the data in the system and make
recommendations.
3) When the PSS' were issued late in January 2022 it came to light that the salary
information that had been provided to XPS was incorrect. Meetings have taken
place to resolve the error.
.
TREAT
1) Automated extraction of data where viable and agreed process for audit
assurance.

Action by whom
PJ/CP & XPS

Rep'n

11

Control actions

Service

5

Total
risk
score

Fin

SW

4

Likely

Risk of manual intervention in administration
reporting. No manual intervention day to day
outside of the project e.g. Miskey errors.

2

Impact

Total

Risk Owner
SW

Rep'n

Risk Description
Incorrect data due to employer error, user
error or historic error leads to service
disruption e.g. incorrect annual benefits
statements being processes. Data not
secure or appropriately maintained.

Service

Risk
Ref.
F1

Fin

Impact

Total
risk
score

3

3

3

9

2

18

TL/CC

Reviewed
on
Mar-22

Dec-21
2

2

3

7

2

14

.
F4

Page 93

F5

F6

F8

Failure to communicate adequately and
timely with scheme members

Failure to recognise and manage conflicts of
interests of Board members
LFPB Policies and strategies not in place or
reviewed.
The lack of available skilled resources
coupled with the absence of a coordinated
training plan to address knowledge gaps,
results in inefficiencies in Pension Admin.

CP/PJ

Dem
serv/LFPB
Chair
LFPB Chair

2

4

4

10

3

30

1

1

5

7

3

21

2

3

7

3

21

SW

3

F9

2

Failure to administer the scheme in line with SW
regulations and policies, compliance towards
regulations and assurances need to be built
in to ensure the pension scheme is
administered in line with current in force
regulation and policy.

2

4

2

4

4

11

8

3

4

33

32

TREAT
PJ / CP
1) Ensure the website is updated, that newsletters are published and annual benefit
statements when due to be communicated.
2) Develop a COMMS strategy for scheme members in relation to scheme changes
3) Pensions SharePoint Site
4) Pension Administrators to send out ABS
5) Communicated with Members the new LGA pensions website
6) Members self-service

TREAT
1) Declaration of interests at the beginning of each meeting.

Dem serv

TREAT
1) Reviewed by the Board
2) Ensure roles and responsibilities are clarified.

LFPB

TREAT
XPS / PJ / CP
1) Project has completed to transfer pension administration to a third party. Transfer
date is September 2021.
2) Migration to XPS who do have this knowledge will continue to process key cases
using the 2 bank staff we have retained to work on fire.
3) Recruitment has completed and a Senior Pension Advisor and Project Support
Officer have now joined the Service.
4) Probable resourcing issues with McCloud and the Modified Scheme legislation
both being implemented at the same time. Resource needs to be identified for both
of these projects.

2

3

4

9

1

9

1

1

5

7

1

7

Jul-21

Jul-21
2

2

3

7

2

14

Mar-22

3

3

3

9

2

18

Mar-22

2

2

2

6

2

12

Item 9

TREAT
SW / PJ / CP
1) Up to date knowledge through various sources such as SAB and the LGA. Up to
date training. Attendance at regional fire administrator working groups. Information
on the scheme is held on the Firefighters website.
2) Through strong governance arrangements and the active reporting of issues,
seek to report all breaches as soon as they occur in order to allow mitigating actions
to take place to limit the impact of any breaches.
3) LGA local pension training undertaken on 29/03/2022
4) Training log in place and TPR toolkit completed by all Board Members

Mar-22

F9i

F10

Failure to notify staff of the Modified Pension SW
Scheme means the employer and employee
has to collect contributions and make
contribution shortfalls.

Gaps in skills and knowledge of Board
members to adequately make decisions,
provide assurance and to scrutinise the
efficiency of the SFRS Pension Schemes.

3

Inability to respond to a significant event
leads to prolonged service disruption and
damage to reputation.

Workforce Reform leads to changes within
our working arrangements without
consideration of the pensions implications

Page 94

F24

Pension administration service disrupted due TL/CC
to Covid 19. A number of staff may be off
work due to the virus and there is also an
impact on the productivity due to prolonged
working from home without sufficient support.

Failure to respond to legal advice for staff of
the 10% pensionable pay allowances. There
is a risk the employer may not collect all
contributions due.

4

36

3

3

8

3

24

3

3

9

3

27

SW

3

F23

9

SW

3

F16

4

LFPB Chair

2

F11

2

2

3

4

2

3

8

9

3

3

24

27

SW

2

2

4

8

4

32

TREAT
1) Officers to report to the Board.
2) Legal advice has been received. Contact has been made with members.
3) Awaiting further communications regarding second options exercise.
4) Letters have gone out to members who returned an expression of interest form
and to those that did not respond. Response deadline December 2021.

SW / PJ / CP

TREAT
1) Members of the Board will be mindful of the Attendance and Knowledge and
Understanding Policy when setting objectives and establishing training needs.
2) The board has approval from Audit and Governance committee to establish
substitutes.
3) All board members to attend LGA provided training.
4) Training log in place and all members have completed TPR toolkit for Board
Members

LFPB

Mar-22

3

TREAT
SW
1) Regular monitoring by the scheme manager
2) Regular discussion at Assurance and Transformation SLT meetings
3) Scheme Manager added to the Workforce Working Group attendees
4) JCCN meetings are in place for escalating concerns not resolved through internal
governance.
TREAT:
1) Encourage working from home where it is possible and providing appropriate
guidance to help individuals to work effectively.
2) Encourage cross training where it is possible.
3) Using secure email, instead of sending out letters.
4) Staff are now being phased back into the office.

SW/NM/PJ/CP

TREAT
1) Officers to report to the Board.
2) Legal advice has been received. Contact has been made with members.
3) Letters going to Fire Services to communicate with members who have
transferred out.
4) Members that are currently in receipt of the 10% allowance are now making
regular contributions.
5) Letters being finalised to go out to Members.

SW

3

8

3

24

Dec-21

2

TREAT
SW / PJ / CP
1) Disaster recover plan in place
2) Ensure system security and data security is in place
3) Business continuity plans regularly reviewed, communicated and tested
4) Assess compliance with the Government's National Cyber Security Strategy 20162021

2

2

3

7

2

14

Mar-22

3

3

3

9

1

9

Mar-22

3

2

2

8

1

8

Mar-22

1

2

2

5

2

10

Mar-22

2

2

4

8

3

24

F25

Following the European Court of Justice’s
SW
decision in O’Brien v Ministry of Justice
which is a case concerning fee paid judges in
the Judicial Pension Scheme, the
UK Government have recognised the right for
retained firefighters employed
before 1 July 2000 to elect to become a
special member from the start date of
their employment. A second options exercise
will require additional resources which are
limited.

2

2

4

8

4

32

TREAT:
1) A second options exercise is required, for which legal discussions have
commenced between central government, the LGA on behalf of FRAs and trade
union legal representatives to consider who is in scope and the details of the
settlement exercise.
2)The most recent LGA Factsheet relating to this case stated that regulations for
England will be drafted and consulted on following the conclusion
of the legal discussions. It is expected further regulations and consultations for
the devolved governments will follow later. No timescales are known at this
stage.
3) It is likely that the options exercise will be undertaken post a decision on future
pension administration services. The scope of the activity will be considered as
more information becomes available.
4) The second options exercise is unlikely to be opened until October 2023.
Communications to members to be sent out.

SW / PJ / CP

Mar-22

2

2

4

8

4

32

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Inherent Risk

Residual risk

F21

Moving out of County Hall could adversely
TL/CC
affect team morale as majority of the staff
are within a few miles of County Hall. A move
to an office further away may result in
employees finding jobs elsewhere to
minimise the commute. Resulting in:
- Significant loss of skilled and experience
staff.

2

3

3

8

3

32

24

TREAT
TL/CC
1) Pensions admin exploring other arrangements.
2) Engage with staff early and to understand their concerns which should be fed
into the consideration of new location.
3) Following the recent closure of County Hall, Kingston the Pensions Team have
temporary accommodation at Fairmount House in Leatherhead. The majority of the
team are continuing to work from home, however we do have staff going to the
office twice a week to open, scan and index post. In late Summer 2021, the
Pensions Team will move to their permanent new location of Dakota. This building
will only allow for 60% capacity so we are currently planning what attendance in the
office will look like in the future.

Likely

Likely
4

Total

8

TREAT:
1) Use video / conference calls.
2) Flexibility about meeting dates.
3) Ensure that delegated responsibilities are clearly understood.
4) Review decision making, delegations and meeting powers.
5) Hold Board meetings electronically.
6) Investigate whether quoracy can be relaxed.
7) Anticipate potential problems and agree actions to address them in advance.
8) Consider delegating responsibility to an emergency response group.

Action by whom
Dem serv

Rep'n

3

Control actions

Service

3

Total
risk
score

Fin

2

Impact

Total

Risk Owner
Dem serv

Rep'n

Risk Description
Board meetings being disrupted due to
Covid19.

Service

Risk
Ref.
F22

Fin

Impact

Total
risk
score

2

3

3

8

2

16

Reviewed
on
Comments
Mar-21
Reference minutes from LFB on 22 April. Agreed to close this
risk.

Mar-21

2

3

3

8

2

16

Committee Manager - notified CP that the Officers proposed
to clse Risk 21. The Chairman noted that Risk 21 related to
moving out of County Hall.
Following a short discussion, the Board agreed to remove Risk
21 from
the Risk Register.

Page 97

This page is intentionally left blank

